### CAPITAL UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, ISLAMABAD



# Identification of Potential Inhibitors of Thrombocytopenia from *Carica papaya*

by

Fizza Jamil

A thesis submitted in partial fulfillment for the degree of Master of Science

in the

Faculty of Health and Life Sciences Department of Bioinformatics and Biosciences

2022

### Copyright $\bigodot$ 2022 by Fizza Jamil

All rights reserved. No part of this thesis may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, by any information storage and retrieval system without the prior written permission of the author. I dedicate this project to Allah Almighty, my creator, my strong pillar, and my source of inspiration, wisdom, knowledge, and understanding. He has been the source of my strength throughout this program. Every challenging work needs self-efforts as well as the guidance of elders especially those who are very close to our hearts. My humble efforts I dedicated to my loving and caring Father and Mother whose affection, love, encouragement and prays of day and night make me able to get such success and honor.



#### CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

### Identification of Potential Inhibitors of Thrombocytopenia

### from Carica papaya

by

Fizza Jamil

(MBS203005)

#### THESIS EXAMINING COMMITTEE

S. No.	Examiner	Name	Organization
(a)	External Examiner	Dr. Atif Ali Khan	LCWU, Lahore
(b)	Internal Examiner	Dr. Sania Riaz	CUST, Islamabad
(c)	Supervisor	Dr. Erum Dilshad	CUST, Islamabad

Dr. Erum Dilshad Thesis Supervisor October, 2022

Dr. Syeda Marriam Bakhtiar Head Dept. of Bioinformatics & Biosciences October, 2022 Dr. Sahar Fazal Dean Faculty of Health & Life Sciences October, 2022

# Author's Declaration

I, Fizza Jamil hereby state that my MS thesis titled "Identification of Potential Inhibitors of Thrombocytopenia from *Carica papaya*" is my own work and has not been submitted previously by me for taking any degree from Capital University of Science and Technology, Islamabad or anywhere else in the country/abroad.

At any time if my statement is found to be incorrect even after my graduation, the University has the right to withdraw my MS Degree.

(Fizza Jamil)

Registration No: MBS203005

### Plagiarism Undertaking

I solemnly declare that research work presented in this thesis titled "Identification of Potential Inhibitors of Thrombocytopenia from *Carica papaya*" is solely my research work with no significant contribution from any other person. Small contribution/help wherever taken has been dully acknowledged and that complete thesis has been written by me.

I understand the zero tolerance policy of the HEC and Capital University of Science and Technology towards plagiarism. Therefore, I as an author of the above titled thesis declare that no portion of my thesis has been plagiarized and any material used as reference is properly referred/cited.

I undertake that if I am found guilty of any formal plagiarism in the above titled thesis even after award of MS Degree, the University reserves the right to withdraw/revoke my MS degree and that HEC and the University have the right to publish my name on the HEC/University website on which names of students are placed who submitted plagiarized work.

(Fizza Jamil)

Registration No: MBS203005

# Acknowledgement

"Trust in the LORD with all your heart and lean not on your understanding; in all your ways acknowledge him and he shall direct your paths". (Proverbs 3:5, 6)

First and foremost, I would like to thank God Almighty for giving me the strength, knowledge, ability, and opportunity to undertake this research study and to persevere and complete it satisfactorily. I could never have done this and my achievement would not possible without the faith I have in you, the Almighty.

After an intensive study period, today is the day: writing this note of thanks is the finishing touch on my dissertation. It has been a period of intense learning for me, not only in the scientific arena but also on a personal level. This thesis would not possible without the inspiration and support of some wonderful individuals – my thanks and appreciation to all of them for being part of this journey and making this thesis possible.

I offer my sincerest gratitude to my supervisor, Dr. Erum Dilshad, Assistant Professor, who has supported me throughout my thesis with her patience and knowledge whilst allowing me the room to work in my way.

It is pleasure to thank my friends and seniors for supporting and helping me in the compilation of the dissertation. Further, I would like to thank the other faculty members in the Department of Bioinformatics and Biosciences at Capital University of Science and Technology, Islamabad. Finally, my deep and sincere gratitude to my family for their continuous and unparalleled love, help, and support. I am grateful to my brother for always being there for me. I am forever indebted to my parents for giving me the opportunities and experiences that have made me who I am. They selflessly encouraged me to explore new directions in life and seek my destiny. This journey would not have been possible if not for them, and I dedicate this milestone to them.

#### (Fizza Jamil)

### Abstract

Dengue virus infection is progressively known as the world's evolving contagious disease. It is transmitted through A. aegypti, a flaviviridae virus. In recent years, there has been a significant increase in the severity and incidence of dengue fever as well as deaths caused by its complications. Although there have been significant efforts made in the development of antivirals and vaccines for dengue, there is currently just supportive care available for patients. In addition to fever, patients face a major decline in the thrombocytes causing thrombocytopenia which eventually causes complications and may be mortal. It is said that C. papaya leaves extracts have a positive effect on thrombocyte count and patients go for a speedy recovery of platelets. The fast spread of the dengue virus has been impacting over a million people and it is now necessary to explore the potent antiviral drug for the dengue virus. This study identifies the active constituents of C. papaya that could counteract thrombocytopenia. C. papaya is a rich source of many phytochemicals, such as flavonoids, alkaloids, saponins, phenolics, glycosides, tannins, phytosterols, and terpenoids. Two proteins of dengue such as NS5 and NS2B-NS3 were reported to have a significant role in the replication of the virus, thus proposing a potential antiviral drug target. So, 20 active ingredients of C. papaya were chosen and docked against receptor proteins with the potential to inhibit the target protein. The most effective possible inhibitor against the dengue virus was found after physiochemical research and identification of the active domains of NS5 and NS2B-NS3 in these compounds. The docking data was evaluated and represented using PvMol and LigPlot. The Lipinski rule of five and ADMET characteristics was applied to these 20 compounds to determine their potential as drugs. The substance with the highest binding affinity and the most favorable pharmacological characteristics was revealed, is Caffeic acid. S-adenosylmethionine (SAM) for NS5 and Hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) for NS2B-NS3 was selected as their reported inhibitor compounds. The results imply that Caffeic acid may be a more effective potential inhibitor of dengue proteins. However, more investigation is required to determine their potential medical applications.

# Contents

A	utho	's Declaration iv
Pl	agiaı	ism Undertaking v
A	cknov	vledgement vi
Al	bstra	ct vii
$\mathbf{Li}$	st of	Figures xi
Li	st of	Tables xiii
A	bbrev	viations xvi
1	<b>Intr</b> 1.1 1.2 1.3	oduction1Problem Statement4Aims and Objectives4Scope5
2	Rev 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8	iew of Literature6Significance of Medicinal Plants6Carica papaya7Morphology of Carica papaya9Taxonomy of Carica papaya10Phytochemical Composition of Carica papaya11Dengue Fever11Molecular Docking13Targeted Protein142.8.1NS5142.8.2NS2B-NS314
	2.9	Inhibitors of Compounds in <i>Carica papaya</i> 15
3	<b>Res</b> 3.1 3.2	earch Methodology17Methodology Flowchart17Selection of Disease18

	3.3	Selection of Protein	18
	3.4	Analysis of Physiochemical Properties	18
	3.5	Distinguishing the Functional Domains of the Targeted Proteins	19
	3.6	Identification of Active Site	19
	3.7	Preparation of Ligands	19
	3.8	Bioactivity Analysis of Ligands and Toxicity Measurements	20
	3.9	Molecular Docking of Ligands and Proteins	20
	3.10	Visualization of Docked Molecule by PyMol	21
	3.11	Analysis of Docked Complex by LigPlot	21
	3.12	Ligand ADME Properties	21
	3.13	Identification of Lead Compounds	21
4	Res	ults and Discussions	22
	4.1	Sequence Retrieval of Protein	22
		4.1.1 NS5	22
		4.1.2 NS2B-NS3	23
	4.2	Analysis of Physicochemical Properties of	
		Targeted Proteins	25
	4.3	Identification of Functional Domains	27
	4.4	Structure of Protein Cleaned for Docking	28
	4.5	Ligand Selection	29
	4.6	Virtual Screening	31
	4.7	ADMET Properties of Ligands	32
		4.7.1 Absorption	32
		4.7.2 Distribution	35
		4.7.3 Metabolism	37
		4.7.4 Excretion	40
		4.7.5 Toxicity	41
	4.8	Molecular Docking	44
	4.9	Interaction of Ligands and Nominated Protein	49
	4.10	Lead Compound Identification	71
	4.11	Inhibitor Identification Against Targeted	
		Proteins	71
		4.11.1 Inhibitor of NS5: S-Adenosyl-L-methionine (SAM) $\ldots$ .	72
		4.11.2 Inhibitor of NS2B-NS3:Hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) $\ldots$ .	72
	4.12	Inhibitor's ADMET Properties	73
		4.12.1 Absorption $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$	73
		4.12.2 Distribution	74
		4.12.3 Metabolism	74
		4.12.4 Excretion	75
		4.12.5 Toxicity	76
	4.13	Inhibitor's Docking with Targeted Proteins	77
	4.14	Comparison of Lead Compound with Inhibitors	78
		4.14.1 Comparison of Lipinski Rule of Five	78

4.14.2	Comparison of ADMET Properties	79
	4.14.2.1 Absorption	79
	4.14.2.2 Distribution	80
	4.14.2.3 Metabolism	80
	4.14.2.4 Excretion	81
	4.14.2.5 Toxicity	82
4.14.3	Comparison of Physiochemical Properties and	
	Docking Results	84
4.14.4	Comparison of Docking Analysis	85
5 Conclusio	ns and Recommendations	90
Bibliography		92
An Appendix	ς Ξ	108

# List of Figures

2.1	C. papaya plant with fruits (a), C. papaya flower (b), C. papaya
	fruit with its seeds (c)
2.2	Dengue spread by <i>Aedes aegypti</i> 12
3.1	The flowchart of methodology
4.1	Sequence Retrieval
4.2	Structure of NS5 Protein
4.3	Sequence Retrieval
4.4	Structure of NS2B-NS3 Protein
4.5	Functional Domain of Selected Protein NS5
4.6	Functional Domain of Selected Protein NS2B-NS3
4.7	Refined structure of NS5
4.8	Refined structure of NS2B-NS3
4.9	2D depiction of docked complex Carpaine-NS5
4.10	2D depiction of docked complex Kaempferol-NS5
4.11	2D depiction of docked complex Ascorbic acid-NS5
4.12	2D depiction of docked complex Tocopherol-NS5
4.13	2D depiction of docked complex Dicoumarol-NS5
4.14	2D depiction of docked complex Cysteine-NS5
4.15	2D depiction of docked complex Homocysteine-NS5
4.16	2D depiction of docked complex Dimethoxyphenol-NS5
4.17	2D depiction of docked complex Coumarin-NS5
4.18	2D depiction of docked complex Glutamic acid-NS5
4.19	2D depiction of docked complex Phenylalanine-NS5
4.20	2D depiction of docked complex Caffeoyl alcohol-NS5
4.21	2D depiction of docked complex Umbelliferon-NS5
4.22	2D depiction of docked complex Methyl nonvl ketone-NS5 57
4.23	2D depiction of docked complex Folic acid-NS5
4.24	2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic acid-NS5
4.25	2D depiction of docked complex p-coumaric acid-NS5
4.26	2D depiction of docked complex 5.7-dimethoxycoumarin-NS5 59
4.27	2D depiction of docked complex Chlorogenic acid-NS5 60
4.28	2D depiction of docked complex Protocatechuic acid-NS5 60
4.29	2D depiction of docked compound Carpaine-NS2B-NS3
4.30	2D depiction of docked compound Kaempferol-NS2B-NS3 61

4.31	2D depiction of docked compound Ascorbic acid-NS2B-NS3	62
4.32	2D depiction of docked compound Tocopherol-NS2B-NS3	62
4.33	2D depiction of docked compound Dicoumarol-NS2B-NS3	63
4.34	2D depiction of docked complex Cysteine-NS2B-NS3	63
4.35	2D depiction of docked complex Homocysteine-NS2B-NS3	64
4.36	2D depiction of docked complex Dimethoxy phenol-NS2B-NS3	64
4.37	2D depiction of docked complex Coumarin-NS2B-NS3	65
4.38	2D depiction of docked complex Glutamic acid-NS2B-NS3	65
4.39	2D depiction of docked complex Phenylalanine-NS2B-NS3	66
4.40	2D depiction of docked complex Caffeoyl alcohol-NS2B-NS3	66
4.41	2D depiction of docked complex Umbelliferon-NS2B-NS3	67
4.42	2D depiction of docked complex Methyl nonyl ketone-NS2B-NS3	67
4.43	2D depiction of docked complex Folic acid-NS2B-NS3	68
4.44	2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic acid-NS2B-NS3	68
4.45	2D depiction of docked complex p-coumaric acid-NS2B-NS3	69
4.46	2D depiction of docked complex 5,7-dimethoxycoumarin-NS2B-NS3	69
4.47	2D depiction of docked complex Chlorogenic acid-NS2B-NS3	70
4.48	2D depiction of docked complex Protocatechuic acid-NS2B-NS3	70
4.49	2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic Acid-NS5	85
4.50	2D depiction of docked complex S-adenosylmethionine-NS5	86
4.51	2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic acid-NS2B-NS3	87
4.52	2D depiction of docked complex Hydroxychloroquine-NS2B-NS3 $\ .$ .	88

# List of Tables

2.1	Pharmacological & Medicinal properties of different parts of the C.	
	papaya plant	9
2.2	Taxonomy of <i>C. papaya</i> [93]	0
2.2	Taxonomy of <i>C. papaya</i> [93]	1
4.1	Physiochemical properties of NS5 & NS2B-NS3	5
4.1	Physiochemical properties of NS5 & NS2B-NS3	6
4.2	Selected ligands from <i>C. papaya</i>	9
4.2	Selected ligands from <i>C. papaya</i>	0
4.3	Applicability of Lipinski Rule on Selected Ligands	1
4.3	Applicability of Lipinski Rule on Selected Ligands	2
4.4	Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands.	3
4.4	Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands	4
4.5	Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands	4
4.5	Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands	5
4.6	Distributive Properties of Selected Ligands	6
4.6	Distributive Properties of Selected Ligands	7
4.7	Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands	7
4.7	Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands	8
4.8	Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands	8
4.8	Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands	9
4.9	Excretory Properties of Selected Ligands	0
4.9	Excretory Properties of Selected Ligands	1
4.10	Toxicity values of Selected Ligands	2
4.10	Toxicity values of Selected Ligands	3
4.11	Toxicity values of Selected Ligands	3
4.11	Toxicity values of Selected Ligands	4
4.12	Ligands with best binding score values with NS5	5
4.12	Ligands with best binding score values with NS5	6
4.13	Ligands with best binding score values with NS5	6
4.13	Ligands with best binding score values with NS5	7
4.14	Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3	7
4.14	Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3	8
4.15	Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3	8
4.15	Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3	9
4.16	Absorption properties of SAM & HCQ	3

4.16	Absorption properties of SAM & HCQ		74
4.17	Distribution properties of SAM & HCQ		74
4.18	Metabolic properties of SAM & HCQ		75
4.19	Excretory properties of SAM & HCQ		76
4.20	Toxicity measurements of SAM & HCQ		76
4.20	Toxicity measurements of SAM & HCQ		77
4.21	Docking Scores of Inhibitors with Targeted Protein Via CB Dock .		77
4.22	Comparison of Lipinski Rule of Five of Inhibitors and Lead Com- pounds		78
4.23	Comparison of Absorptive properties of Inhibitors and Lead Com- pounds		79
4.24	Comparison of Distribution properties of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds		80
4.25	Comparison of Metabolic properties of Inhibitors and Lead Com- pounds		81
4.26	Comparison of Excretory Properties of Inhibitors and Lead Com- pounds		82
4.27	Comparison of Toxicity of Lead compound & Inhibitors		83
4.28	Comparison of Physiochemical Properties and Docking Scores of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds		84
4.28	Comparison of Physiochemical Properties and Docking Scores of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds		85
4.29	Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS5		86
4.29	Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS5		87
4.30	Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS2B-NS3		88
4.30	Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS2B-NS3		89
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	.08
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	.09
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	10
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	11
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	12
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	13
5.1	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5	1	14
5.2	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3	1	15
5.2	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3	1	16

5.2	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with	
	NS2B-NS3	. 117
5.2	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with	
	NS2B-NS3	. 118
5.2	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with	
	NS2B-NS3	. 119
5.2	Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with	
	NS2B-NS3	. 120

# Abbreviations

A.aegypti: Aedes aegypti

**ADMET**: Absorption, Distribution, Metabolism, Excretion, And Toxicity **BBB**: Blood-brain barrier **BITC**: Benzyl isothiocyanate C. papaya: Carica papaya CADD: Combined Annotation Dependent Depletion CB Dock: Cavity-detection guided Blind Docking **CNS**: Central Nervous System CYP: Cytochromes P450 **DENV**: Dengue Virus **DHF**: Dengue Hemorrhagic Fever GCMS: Gas chromatography-mass spectrometry **GRAVY**: Grand average of hydropathicity **HCQ**: Hydroxychloroquine hERG: Human Ether-a-go-go-Related Gene **ICM**: Internal Coordinate Mechanics **IGC**<sub>50</sub>: Inhibited the Growth of Cells by 50%**II**: Instability index kDa: Kilodalton LD<sub>50</sub>: Lethal Dose 50 LOAEL: Lowest-observed-adverse-effect level MRTD: Maximum rate tolerated dose **MTase**: Methyltransferase **NS**: Non-structural

- $\mathbf{OCT}:$  Organic cation transporter
- $\mathbf{ORF}:$  Open Reading Frame
- $\mathbf{PDB}:$ Protein Data Bank
- ${\bf RdRp}:$  RNA-dependent RNA polymerase
- ${\bf RNA}:$  Ribonucleic acid
- ${\bf SAM}:$  S-Adenosyl methionine
- $\mathbf{VDss:}$  Volume distribution at steady state

### Chapter 1

### Introduction

Indigenous knowledge about natural products is as ancient as human civilizations. Knowledge has been transferred to people from their ancestors in verbal form. Plants have been in the use of people for different purposes since old ages [1]. The significance of ethnomedicinal knowledge in this era exists in the evolution of novel drugs, however, to make certain the therapeutic value of medicinal plants, standardization of traditional medications is obvious. Much of the modern medications are the result of ancient and folklore remedies [2]. Indigenous knowledge is general knowledge of the overall ecosystem and about specific plants used as food, medicine, and building material [3]. These precious bits of knowledge have not been transferred completely as less than 1% of the knowledge of medicinal plants or other natural products has been surveyed globally [4]. In primordial eras, natural products were efficaciously used to administer various illnesses due to their improved susceptibility in the human community, better affinity with the body, and their natural influence to medicate disease by symbiotic effects and nullifying blends to minimize antagonistic effects [5]. Therapeutic plants have no or fewer adverse reactions as compared to synthetic medication [6], [7]. Medicinal herbs and plants can be used in a variety of forms such as, in fresh or powdered form, extracts, seeds, and their fruits or mixtures sometimes [8], [9]. Almost 265,000 species of plants exist on earth, however, only half of them are so far explored for their curative importance and chemical composition. According to an estimation of about a decade, [10], [11] around 80% population depends on medicinal plants for the cure of different diseases in developing countries while 60 % population of the developed country uses these plants for various health issues [6]. Approximately 42% population in the USA, 40-50% in Germany, 48% in Australia, and about 49% population of France relies on plants for various health problems [12].

In Pakistan, around 6000 species of higher plants exist, of which 600 - 700 are used for the purposes [13]. 3000 species are reported from northern areas of Pakistan among those, 124 species have pharmaceutical significance [14], [15]. Unfortunately, Pakistan has reported only 10% remedial plants out of the total species [16]. C papaya is a tropical tree and its different parts have been used medicinally for the cure of a very large range of diseases such as diabetes, intestinal worms, wound restoration, dengue fever, and an abortion agent. Most commonly papaya is consumed as ripe fruit, however, plant tissues are used for therapeutic purposes including young leaves, seeds, latex, or immature green fruit. The main agent that is accountable for action has not been known but there is some evidence of activity of Benzyl isothiocyanate (BITC) in different curative perspectives. Young leaves, seeds, and latex are good sources of BITC. For speedy recovery of the burn wound, protease is used as topical use and unripe green fruit is a good source of protease. Papaya tissues give some active constituents in ailments and some activities have been exhibited by papaya extracts including hypertension, diabetes, dengue fever, etc. Still, active compounds that are responsible remain unidentified [17].

The fruit is enriched in proteins, vitamin C, fiber, amino acids, carbohydrates, and other nutrients. All tissues of papaya consist of white latex, which is rich in an enzyme known as papain that plays a crucial role in the cure of many diseases, for industrial use and as well as for drug designing for instance pharmaceutical provisions and meat tenderizers [19]. In different aspects papaya extract plays a role that may include vascular muscle relaxation, increasing blood cells count in dengue fever, lowering blood glucose levels, boosting cell proliferation in wound repair, for abortion purposes by contracting uterine muscles, etc. Even though there has been vast research in the past decade on the active site of extracts of C. papaya, more advancement in studies may increase the knowledge of active constituents liable for therapeutic purposes. It will assist to pass the traditional knowledge of remedies to conventional medicinal usage [17].

It has been reported, that as an appetizer, the flavor-active compounds in papaya are commonly linalool and benzaldehyde. The presence of linalool could be the reason for diverse sweet flowery flavors in foods. Whereas, benzaldehyde is another appetite inducer that might lead to a range of flavors in papaya fruit with its variety of benzaldehyde products [18]. In the last 50 years, the prevalence of dengue fever is increased by 30 times worldwide, in more than 100 countries. South Western America and South East Asia are two main hotspots where the dengue virus has influenced considerable populations [23], [24]. Climate change effects are somehow responsible for making temperatures in the specific area more appropriate for breeding mosquito-borne ailments, like dengue fever [25], [26]. The statistics in more recent years have proposed that the concentration of dengue fever has transferred from mild to severe, as dengue fever in Pakistan has transformed in terms of survival rate in contradiction of several aspects [29].

At present, the unlicensed but traditional use of C. papaya plant extract is for dengue infection as a herbal remedy in South East Asian countries such as Pakistan, India, Sri Lanka, and Malaysia [20]. Studies suggest that C. papaya leaves have the capacity for antiviral action in contradiction to DENV. The dengue virus is transmitted by the bite of a female mosquito from the family Aedes aegypti and spread into the bodies of mammals including humans [21]. The initial signs of dengue disease are just like common cold and fever with the headache that increases over time. Four types of dengue viruses have been known so far named DENV1, DENV2, DENV3, and DENV4 [22]. Until now there is no antiviral drug or vaccine for the dengue virus. In addition to fever, thrombocytes face a major decline in the human body causing thrombocytopenia. The decrease in thrombocyte count results in dengue hemorrhagic fever (DHF) which ultimately causes complications and may be mortal. It is said that C. papaya leaves extracts have a positive effect on thrombocyte count and patients go for a speedy recovery of platelets. The fast spread of the dengue virus has been impacting over a million people and it is now necessary to explore the potent antiviral drug for the dengue virus.

#### **1.1 Problem Statement**

Dengue infection is typically a self-limited sickness in which only supportive care is given. No vaccine is existing for the inhibition of dengue infection. Vector mosquito bite avoidance is the only way to avert dengue disease attainment. Numerous reports have proposed that *C. papaya* leaves can repair damaging effects on platelets by the dengue virus. As papaya leaves have therapeutic efficacy against dengue infection, so this study has been conducted to explore the curative agent in leaf extracts as anti-thrombocytopenia. In this study, two proteins of dengue (NS32B and NS5) has been targeted by computational study through molecular docking with active compounds of *C. papaya* leaves having antiviral properties.

#### **1.2** Aims and Objectives

This study aims to find the potential inhibitors of thrombocytopenia caused by the dengue virus in natural anti-viral compounds of *C. papaya*. So by using computational tools we focus on protein-ligand interactions for the structural drug design against thrombocytopenia.

The objectives of this study are as follows:

- 1. To determine various bioactive compounds of *C. papaya* as potential inhibitors of dengue proteins.
- 2. To scrutinize the interaction between targeted dengue proteins and bioactive compounds of *C. papaya*.
- 3. To recognize the best interacting molecule that exhibits inhibitory effects against the disease.

### 1.3 Scope

Currently, there is no specific treatment available, the management is entirely supportive like keeping body temperature below 39°C, and giving the patient paracetamol. Advice to drink large amounts of fluids along with the patient's normal diet. According to many reports, *C. papaya* leaves extracts show positive effects on thrombocytopenia. So there is a need for exploration of certain natural potential compounds in *C. papaya* having a restraining effect against the dengue virus. Identification of inhibitory compounds against dengue disease could be done by *In-silico* molecular docking that will ultimately help in drug design to encounter an increasing death rate due to dengue fever.

### Chapter 2

### **Review of Literature**

### 2.1 Significance of Medicinal Plants

From prehistoric times plants have been used for therapeutic purposes. Remedies with natural products are considered to be very safe as there are no or fewer adverse reactions. Medicinal plant therapeutics are synchronized with nature and this is the prime benefit. The primordial researchers only considered that medicinal plants are merely a way to treat many problems and diseases of well-being. Many studies have been done to account for accurate conclusions in terms of the usefulness of various medicinal herbs. These drugs are free of side effects and due to this, herbal remediation is popular across the globe. The medicinal quality of these plants gives a rational method for the cure of many internal ailments, that are else complicated to cure.

According to the well-documented scientific literature, plants have been used for therapeutic purposes for about the previous 60,000 years [30]. Millions of people are dependent on medicinal herbs for their welfare across the world [31]. In rural communities, natural remedies are being used regularly as the synthetic medication is difficult to avail of or even inaccessible. This is in contradiction to westernized communities where curative floras are normally used as an unconventional or complement to recommended medication [31]. These medicinal herbs are the important primary source of medication however, for the development of new drugs they also play a role as phytochemical building blocks [32]. As per an estimation, around 67% of drugs employed in chemotherapy are derivatives of natural products [33]. In addition to this, medicinal plants are cost-productive as they offer chances for rural inhabitants to attain cash income [34].

The traditional knowledge of herbal remedies has been transferred over the centuries among human populations. Secondary metabolites of active components are generally the cause of the biological activity of plant species used all over the globe for diverse reasons comprising cures for infectious diseases [35].

Traditional methods of medication are widely practiced for various problems. Insufficient resources of medications, unwanted effects of numerous synthetic medicines, population intensification, an unaffordable budget of cures, and improvement of resistance to presently utilized drugs for contagious ailments have led to amplified prominence of the consumption of plant materials as a source of remedies for an extensive range of human disease. The best advantage to the use of herbal medicines is independent of any age group and the sexes. In the previous few years, several new compounds have been sequestered from marine creatures from which many of the constituents have been explored to possess intriguing biological activities [36]. Presently the major focus of many researchers is on the isolation of pharmacologically active constituents obtained from natural sources in the region of such diseases where presently accessible medicines are not so beneficial. Herbal medicines are nowadays experiencing a greater revival as people are returning to the base for their well-being because nature is the solution to every problem. Herbal remedies are now known as alternative medicines [37].

### 2.2 Carica papaya

Papaya (*Carica papaya L.*) is an important fruit crop nurtured in tropical and subtropical zones. Papaya originated from Costa Rica or Southern Mexico afterward it was familiarized as a plantation crop in Hawaii, Sri Lanka, Australia, South Africa, India, and in all tropical and sub-tropical regions. It is grown both commercially and domestically [38]. Papaya is a common man fruit available cheaply but has enriched in nutritive value. It is rich in natural vitamins and minerals. Papaya is low in calories and carotene in comparison to other fruits like plantains, apple, or guava that aid in the prevention of damage by free radicals. Immature green papaya is used as a vegetable that contains all nutrients except carotene [39]. Each component of the papaya tree has significant economic worth due to which it is now grown on a commercial scale. In last recent decades, there is substantial advancement regarding the natural and biological activity as well as remedial application of papaya due to which it is now considered a beneficial nutraceutical fruit plant.



FIGURE 2.1: C. papaya plant with fruits (a), C. papaya flower (b), C. papaya fruit with its seeds (c) [93].

Some of the uses of every part of *C. papaya* are as follows as shown in table 2.1, [38], [39]:

Parts of plant	Uses	
	Inhibition of cancer cells,	
	Anti-malarial & Anti-plasmodial,	
Leaves	Facilitates digestion,	
	Enhances thrombocytes in dengue fever,	
	Meat tenderizer.	
	Regularize bowel movement,	
Fruit	'Papain' is used for indigestion,	
	Void the stroke or heart attack.	
	Antibacterial,	
Seeds	Used as a skin irritant,	
	Improves digestion.	
	Skin lightening agent,	
Peel	Pain reliever,	
	Muscle relaxant.	
Boots	Ease urinary trouble,	
10005	Uses in cure of dyspepsia.	
	Cures diarrhea,	
Latex	bleeding hemorrhoids,	
	whooping cough.	

TABLE 2.1: Pharmacological & Medicinal properties of different parts of the<br/>C. papaya plant

### 2.3 Morphology of Carica papaya

The papaya plant is an evergreen tree-like herb with a single stem and thin branches. Its average height is almost 5-10m. The plant's leaves are arranged in an umbrella-like canopy to the top of the stem. Leaves are about 20-18 inches in diameter and are palmately lobed leaves. It contains white latex in all parts of the plant [40]. Its fruit is melon-like. Its shape varies from round to oblong with the size of 3 to 5 inches in diameter. The peel is thin and smooth, and its color change from green (immature fruit) to deep orange-yellow (ripe fruit). The inner flesh is 1 to 2 inches in thickness, mildly sweet in taste and color varies from pale yellow to deep salmon-pink. Fruit also contains numerous black round seeds [42].

The flowers of *C. papaya* are 5-parted yellowish-white petals and are very dimorphic. Petals are a fusion of male and female flowers. The ovary is present in the female flower and five petals are connected with the base [40]. Papaya is a polygamous species with the three classifications of primary sex type. It includes,

- 1. Female (pistillate)
- 2. Hermaphroditic (bisexual)
- 3. Male (staminate)

Moreover, some plants produce more than one type of flower at the same time. Some species of papaya exhibit a variety of degrees of femaleness and maleness. This affinity to alter sexual expression is triggered by climate influences like flexible temperature and drought [41].

### 2.4 Taxonomy of Carica papaya

The taxonomy of the C. papaya as shown in table 2.2 below.

TABLE 2.2: Taxonomy of C. papaya [93]

Domain	Flowering Plant
Kingdom	Plantae
Sub Kingdom	Tracheobionta
Class	Magnoliopsida
Subclass	Dilleniidae
Subdivision	Spermatophyta

Domain	Flowering Plant
Phylum	Steptophyta
Order	Brassicales
Family	Caricaceae
Genus	Carica
Botanical Name	C. papaya

TABLE 2.2: Taxonomy of *C. papaya* [93]

# 2.5 Phytochemical Composition of Carica papaya

Leaves of *C. papaya* are comprised of flavonoids, alkaloids, tannin, saponin, and glycosides. Ca, Mg, Mn, Zn, K, Fe, and various other minerals are present in its shoots. Papain and chymopapain enzymes are present in unripe or immature fruit. The chemical composition of mature ripen fruit shows the presence of carotenoids such as cryptoxanthin and Beta carotene. Roots contain glucosinolates carposide and benzyl isothiocyanate. The fruit of papaya contains mono-terpenoids, 4-terpinol and Linalool however seed's oil fruit comprises flavonoids, myricetin, and kaemferol [43].

According to studies enzymes found in latex are papain, chymopapain, Protease omega, and caricain [44], [45], [46]. Some other reports show that Latex of C. papaya also contains enzymes named chitinase, glutaminyl cyclase, and cysteine endopeptidases [47].

#### 2.6 Dengue Fever

Dengue fever is a flu-like sickness that influences people in every age group i.e infants, young children, and adults. Its symptoms may vary regarding the age of the patient. Slight feverish sickness with a little bit of rash is the symptom of disease in infants. While older children and adults may face a mild fever or the usual harsh disease with sudden onset and high febrile condition, pain behind the eyes, headache, muscle, and joint pains, and rash [48]. Transmission of dengue fever virus is through a female mosquito *A. aegypti*, which transfers the disease by feeding on the blood of an infected person to the non-infected. The habitation of this species of mosquito is indoors, in closets, and in other dark places around human dwellings, however, it rests in a cool and shady area, outside. Stored and exposed water are the favored breeding places. One of the four different serotypes of the dengue virus is responsible for infection (DENV1, DENV2, DENV3 and DENV4).



FIGURE 2.2: Dengue spread by A. aegypti [94].

Dengue virus infection is progressively known as the world's evolving contagious disease. Almost 500,000 victims of Dengue Hemorrhagic Fever (DHF) and 50-100 million dengue fever infectants are reported every year with around 24,000 deaths cases [49]. In Pakistan, the first case was testified in 1994; though, it properly gained consideration in the mid-2000s when the infectants count has been elevated

in the coastal areas of Karachi [54]. The dengue virus exists in the tropical and subtropical areas of Pakistan as it is a favorable environment for the virus [50], [51], [52]. Heavy rainfalls in the monsoon season may intensify the dengue cases in Pakistan at that time [53].

Dengue virus is an enveloped single-stranded RNA virus. The virion has a diameter of 30nm and possesses a spherical nucleocapsid core and icosahedral envelope organization [55], [56]. DENV genome is 11kb long with a 5'cap at the 5'end. This genome lacks a poly-A tail [57]. The genome of this virus comprises mRNA ORF (Open Reading Frame) for translation, which gives two peptides (2k and ER), three structural proteins (envelope (E), capsid (C), membrane (M)), and seven non-structural proteins (NS1, NS2A, NS2B, NS3, NS4A, NS4B, and NS5) [58]. There is no particular cure for dengue fever. Victims of this virus should seek medical assistance, take rest and stay hydrated. Supportive medication could be taken to control the fever and some pain killer for body aches [54].

### 2.7 Molecular Docking

From small molecule databases, it is now possible to discover novel potential inhibitors against the target of concern. Molecular docking is the computer modeling that envisages shaping a receptor-ligand complex. To predict the feasible conformations of a binary complex, every docking program makes use of one or more precise search algorithms [59].

Molecular docking is a technique that estimates the possible orientation, affinity, and association of a ligand in the binding site of a protein. Information on orientation could be used to determine the accurate structure of the ligand molecule within the target binding site through a special scoring function. The input of docking is the 3D structures of the target proteins and the ligands which represents a frequently used approach in structure-based drug design. The strength of the binding affinity among ligand molecule and drug target is determined in docking through the scoring function [60]. Moreover, it also aids in revealing the essential properties, such as high binding affinity, and the reasonable mechanism of absorption, excretion, distribution, and metabolism help in the selection of lead for the target [61]. Ligand and protein docking is one of the main key areas of molecular docking, as structure- based drug designing plays a significant role in its acceptance and appreciation. Molecular docking could be done by various software such as CB Dock, ICM, Auto Dock, Auto Dock vina, etc. The most used algorithms in molecular docking are the distance geometry method, molecular dynamics and genetics algorithm, etc [62].

### 2.8 Targeted Protein

#### 2.8.1 NS5

The largest and most conserved protein among all viral proteins is NS5 (103 kDa) [71]. NS5 protein is almost 900 amino acids long and contains an RNA- dependent RNA polymerase domain at its C-terminal end and a methyl-transferase domain at its N terminus. The enzymatic activities from both termini provide an attractive target for antiviral drug development [72]. These enzymes codified by NS5 demonstrate that they have a significant role in the replication of the virus, thus proposing NS5 as a potential antiviral drug target. 320-368 residues are precisely conserved among the dengue viruses and are implicated to interact with NS3 [73]. NS5 protein is confined within the nucleus in DENV infections, however not all flavivirus RNA-dependent RNA polymerase is localized to the nucleus. Its definite enzymatic functions in the virus life cycle are vital in the cytoplasm and are presently unidentified but are dynamically being investigated [74].

#### 2.8.2 NS2B-NS3

NS2B-NS3 protease complex is a serine protease that belongs to the family of chymotrypsin with a standard Ser-His-Asp catalytic triad [63]. NS3 protease

(NS3pro185; amino acids1476 to 1660) requires a cofactor for its proper functioning and participation in substrate recognition, NS2B (amino acids 1394 to 1440) is referred to as that cofactor [64], [65]. The cleavage at 8 of the 13 polyprotein cleavage positions occurred due to the dengue virus protease complex [66]. For the maturation of the viral particle, these cleavages are required. However, these cleavages make the dengue virus NS2B-NS3 protease complex a perfect target for drug development. The dengue virus proteases are important for viral replication and infectivity, including NS2B-NS3. In yellow fever virus is genetically altered and contains an inactive NS2B-NS3 protease so it is unable to infect the target cells [67]. Likewise, a report shows that the inhibition of NS2B-NS3 protease reduces dengue virus infections by up to 80 % through the treatment of cells with a peptide [68]. Trypsin identifies sites that contain a single cationic residue, however, NS2B-NS3 protease distinguishes sites that consist of two cationic residues. So it has been a requirement for the development of novel classes of inhibitors for directing the active sites [69]. The structure of NS3 suggests that its domain encoded the functional protease however, further studies show that NS2B cofactor is crucial for NS3 protease activation [65].

### 2.9 Inhibitors of Compounds in Carica papaya

Natural compounds are a significant source for the development of new antiviral drugs. The aqueous leaf extracts of *C. papaya* show potential anti-dengue activity, especially in the case of thrombocytopenia. A report shows that the administration of leaf extracts increased platelet counts from  $55 \times 103$ /microliter to  $168 \times 103$ /microliter in a dengue-infected patient [76]. Phytochemical analysis of leaves of *C. papaya* reveals the occurrence of carbohydrates, flavonoids, alkaloids, saponins, phenolics, glycosides, tannins, phytosterols, and terpenoids [77]. An analysis states that the *C. papaya* leaves extract comprises phenolic compounds, such as caffeic acid, kaempferol, quercetin, chlorogenic acid, protocatechuic acid, pcoumeric acid, and 5,7-dimethoxycoumarin [78]. A study shows the presence of 21 compounds in the aqueous leaf extracts of *C. papaya*. They are named: Ascorbic acid, kaempferol, deoxykaempferol, quercetin, deoxyquercetin, coumaroylquinic acid, carpaine, tocopherol, dicoumarol, p-coumaroyl alcohol, cysteine, homocysteine, folic acid, cysteine sulphoxide, dimethoxy phenol, coumarin, glutamic acid, phenylalanine, caffeoyl alcohol, umbelliferone and methyl nonyl ketone [92].

# Chapter 3

# **Research Methodology**

### 3.1 Methodology Flowchart



FIGURE 3.1: The flowchart of research methodology.

### 3.2 Selection of Disease

Dengue virus (DENV) is transmitted to the human body by *A. aegypti*. In tropical and subtropical areas, around 2.5 billion people are at risk of infection [79]. It exists in four distinguished serotypes (DENV-1, DENV-2, DENV-3 and DENV-4). Among four serotypes, infection with any of them may result in a wide range of clinical symptoms [80]., such as from mild-flu-like syndrome to the most severe form of disease i.e., thrombocytopenia, which may be fatal. The formation of a potent vaccine remains global health precedence. A tetravalent vaccine is required that should be effective against all four serotypes of the dengue virus.

### 3.3 Selection of Protein

As there are four serotypes of DENV, those four serotypes have a cosmopolitan genotype DENV-2 [81]. NS3 is a multifunctional protein with serine protease, that binds with the NS2B cofactor which involves the cleavage of DENV polyprotein [82]. The NS2B-NS3 protease complex shows the major involvement of processes of the viral polyprotein and virus replication [83]. Another protein NS5 also plays a vital role in virus replication [84]. Thus, both proteins are an attractive target for the development of antiviral therapeutics [82], [83]. The 3D structures of both the proteins have been downloaded from the Protein Data Bank (PDB) in .pdb format (PDB ID of NS2B-NS3: 5GXJ and NS5: 5ZQK).

### 3.4 Analysis of Physiochemical Properties

The study of chemical and physical properties plays a significant role in determining the function of proteins. A tool of Expasy, i.e ProtParam, is used to predict these properties.

Properties include no. of amino acids, molecular weight, instability index, isoelectric point, No. of positively charged residues (Arg + Lys), No. of negatively
charged residues (Asp + Glu), grand average of hydropathicity, and atomic composition will be evaluated by using ProtParam [85].

# 3.5 Distinguishing the Functional Domains of the Targeted Proteins

For analysis of protein, its functional sites, family classification, and prediction of domains, a database has been used named InterPro. This database uses predictive models, termed signatures, through a variety of databases and forms an Interprofessional Consortium [86]. We will get the polypeptide binding sites and homodimer interfaces by adding the FASTA sequence of the main protease in InterPro.

#### **3.6** Identification of Active Site

With the protein, the ligand shows the maximum interaction on the active site of the target protein. Amino acids play a vital role in the formation of a ligandprotein complex. These protein-binding pockets are identified by CASTP [87].

#### **3.7** Preparation of Ligands

The world's largest assortment of freely available chemical information is the Pub-Chem. We will get a 3-dimensional (3D) structure of ligands from PubChem. Chemical information consists of chemical names, simple and 3D structures, molecular formulas, their isomers, canonical similes, and other information about molecular activities [88].

From the PubChem, the structure of ligands will be downloaded and the MM2 energy of the ligands will be minimized by using Chem3D ultra. If in case the

targeted structures are not available on PubChem, we can draw them on software ChemDraw by inserting canonical similies taken from data available on PubChem. After minimizing the MM2 energy ligand's structure will be downloaded in .sdf format.

# 3.8 Bioactivity Analysis of Ligands and Toxicity Measurements

Chemical compounds that were used as ligands should follow the Lipinski rule of five which is a rule to evaluate the effectiveness of an orally active drug. The potential success of a compound relies on its ADMET properties. PkCSM (https://omictools.com/pkcsm-tool) is an online tool that aids in finding the ADMET properties of compounds [89].

The Lipinski rules are as follows:

- The value of logP of most "drug-like" molecules should be confined to 5.
- Molecular weight should be below 500 g/mol.
- The maximum No. of hydrogen bond acceptors should be 10.
- The Maximum No. of hydrogen bond donors should be 5.

## 3.9 Molecular Docking of Ligands and Proteins

Molecular docking helps to find the best conformational interaction among ligands and targeted proteins. It will be done by Cavity-detection guided Blind Docking (CB-Dock) which recognizes the binding sites and performs molecular docking with AutoDock Vina [90]. We will get docked results of interactive 3D visualization in 5 different poses by uploading the 3D structure of proteins (pdb format) and ligands (sdf format). Selection of best pose is done based on minimum vina score.

# 3.10 Visualization of Docked Molecule by Py-Mol

An open-source molecular visualization is available, named as PyMol. It can give high- quality 3D images of proteins, nucleic acids, small molecules and electron densities, etc. Docked complex of protein and ligand will be visualized by PyMol [91]. Docked poses produced by CB- Dock will be visualized by PyMol.

#### 3.11 Analysis of Docked Complex by LigPlot

LigPlot is used for the analysis of docked complex, that automatically gives schematic diagrams of ligand-protein interactions (.pdb format). These interactions are altered by hydrogen bonds and through hydrophobic contacts. LigPlot gives 2D schematic depictions of the ligand-protein complex which enables the prompt assessment of many enzyme complexes [92].

#### **3.12** Ligand ADME Properties

The study of pharmacokinetics and toxicity properties is done after the analysis of docked complex. The weak drug candidates would be eliminated in the early stages of preclinical ADME, leaving behind the potential drug candidates selected against the disease. Optimization of ADME properties of drug molecules will be done by PkCSM [87], [93].

#### **3.13** Identification of Lead Compounds

The most active inhibitor will be determined after a comprehensive analysis of protein and ligand interactions, docking scores, and toxicity studies. The nominated compound is our lead compound [89], [94].

## Chapter 4

# **Results and Discussions**

## 4.1 Sequence Retrieval of Protein

#### 4.1.1 NS5

The FASTA sequence of NS5 protein obtained from PDB is as under: 5ZQK-1—Chains A, B—Non Structural Protein 5—Dengue virus 2 (11060)

>5ZQK\_1|Chains A, B|Non Structural Protein 5|Dengue virus 2 (11060)

MHHHHHHSSGVDLGTENLYFQSMGTGNTGETLGEKWKNRLNALGKSEFQIYKKSGIQEV DRTLAKEGIKRGETDHHAVSRGSAKLRWFVERNLVTPEGKVVDLGCGRGGWSYYCGGL KNVKEVKGLTKGGPGHEEPIPMSTYGWNLVRLQSGVDVFFTPPEKCDTLLCDIGESSPNPT VEAGRTLRVLNLVENWLNNNTQFCIKVLNPYMPSVIEKMEALQRKYGGALVRNPLSRNS THE MYWVS NASGNIVS SVNMISR MLINRFTMRHKKATYEP DVDLGSGTRNIGIES ETPNLDIIGKRIEKIKQEHETSWHYDQDHPYKTWAYHGSYETKQTGSASSMVNGVVRLLTKPWD VIPMVTQMAMTDTTPFGQQRVFKEKVDTRTQEPKEGTKKLMKITAEWLWKELGKKKTP RMCTREEFTRKVRSNAALGAIFTDENKWKSAREAVEDSGFWELVDKERNLHLEGKCETCVYNMMGKREKKLGEFGKAKGSRAIWYMWLGARFLEFEALGFLNEDHWFSRENSLSGVE GEGLHKLGYILRDVSKKEGGAMYADDTAGWDTRITLEDLKNEEMVTNHMEGEHKKLAE AIFKLTYQNKVVRVQRPTPRGTVMDIISRRDQRGSGQVVTYGLNTFTNMEAQLIRQMEGE GVFKSIQQLTATEEIAVKNWLVRVGRERLSRMAISGDDCVVKPLDDRFASALTALNDMGKVRKDIQQWEPSRGWNDWTQVPFCSHHFHELIMKDGRVLVVPCRNQDELIGRARISQGA GWSLRETACLGKSYAQMWSLMYFHRRDLRLAANAICSAVPSHWVPTSRTTWSIHATHE WMTTEDMLTVWNRVWIQENPWMEDKTPVESWEEIPYLGKREDQWCGSLIGLTSRATWAKNIQTAINQVRSLIGNEEYTDYMPSMKRFRREEEEAGVLW

FIGURE 4.1: Sequence Retrieval

The structure of NS5 that is available on PDB is shown in Figure 4.2



FIGURE 4.2: Structure of NS5 Protein

Non-structural protein 5 (NS5) of Flavivirus comprises a C-terminal polymerase (RNA-dependent RNA polymerase [RdRp]) domain and an N-terminal methyltransferase (MTase) domain bonded by a 9-amino-acid linker. The NS5 domains are structurally conserved in the full-length protein. Targeting the NS5 protein is a likely approach for generating attenuated flavivirus strains for vaccine proposal [95].

#### 4.1.2 NS2B-NS3

The FASTA sequence of NS2B-NS3 protein obtained from PDB is as under: 5GXJ-1—Chains A, B—FLAVIVIRUS-NS2B, LINKER, Peptidase S7—Zika virus (64320) >5GXJ\_1|Chains A, B|FLAVIVIRUS\_NS2B, LINKER, Peptidase S7|Zika

virus (64320)

SVDMYIERAGDITWEKDAEVTGNSPRLDVALDESGDFSLVEDDGP GGGGSGGGGSGALWDVPAPKEVKKGETTDGVYRVMTRRLLGST QVGVGVMQEGVFHTMWHVTKGSALRSGEGRLDPYWGDVKQDL VSYCGPWKLDAAWDGHSEVQLLAVPPGERARNIQTLPGIFKTKD GDIGAVALDYPAGTSGSPILDKCGRVIGLYGNGVVIKNGSYVSAIT QGRR

FIGURE 4.3: Sequence Retrieval

The structure of NS2B-NS3 that is available on PDB is shown in Figure 4.4



FIGURE 4.4: Structure of NS2B-NS3 Protein

NS2B-NS3 protease, a non-structural protein complex, is a good and attractive antiviral target as it plays a significant role in the maturation of viral non-structural proteins [96]. This protease is a two-component serine protease. The N terminal part of NS3 and the cofactor of NS2B fused to become a membrane protein vital for the membrane site of NS3 [97].

# 4.2 Analysis of Physicochemical Properties of Targeted Proteins

Various chemical and physical parameters of nominated proteins can be found by a tool, ProtParam [98]. Analysis of physicochemical parameters reveals that the length of NS5 and NS2B-NS3 polypeptides are 923 and 224 amino acids long respectively. Whereas, NS5 and NS2B-NS3 contain a molecular weight of 105748.25 da and 23681.49 da. It shows a stable protein. Table 4.1 shows the physicochemical properties of NS5 and NS2B-NS3.

Parameters	NS5	NS2B-NS3
Molecular weight	105748.25 Dalton	23681.49 Dalton
No. of amino acids	923	224
Theoretical pI	8.58	5.01
Instability index	36.44 (stable)	20.85 (stable)
(II)	50.44 (Stable)	29.00 (stable)
No. of negatively		
charged residues	119	30
(Asp+ Glu)		
No. of positively		
charged residues	127	23
(Arg+Lys)		
Aliphatic index	70.85	78.26
Grand average of		
hydropathicity	-0.620	-0.0330
(GRAVY)		

TABLE 4.1: Physiochemical properties of NS5 & NS2B-NS3

Parameters	NS5	NS2B-NS3
	Carbon-4664	Carbon-1039
	Hydrogen-7296	Hydrogen-1629
Atomic composition	Nitrogen-1338	Nitrogen-293
	Oxygen-1381	Oxygen-329
	Sulphur-48	Sulfur-6
Total no. of	14797	3206
atoms	14727	5290
	Ala-47 (5.1%)	Ala-14 $(6.2\%)$
	Arg-63 $(6.8\%)$	Arg-12 $(5.4\%)$
	Asn-44 $(4.8\%)$	Asn-4 $(1.8\%)$
	Asp-40 $(4.3\%)$	Asp-19 $(8.5\%)$
	Cys-14 $(1.5\%)$	Cys-2 $(0.9\%)$
	Gln-31 $(3.4\%)$	Gln-6 $(2.7\%)$
	Glu-79 $(8.6\%)$	$\operatorname{Glu-11}(4.9\%)$
	Gly-76 (8.2)	Gly-37 $(16.5)$
	His-27 $(2.9\%)$	His-3 $(1.3\%)$
	Ile-41 $(4.4\%)$	Ile-9 $(4.0\%)$
Amino acid	Leu-70 (7.6%)	Leu- $16(7.1\%)$
composition	Lys-64 $(6.9\%)$	Lys- $11(4.9\%)$
	Met-34 $(3.7\%)$	Met-4 $(1.8\%)$
	Phe-25 $(2.7\%)$	Phe-3 $(1.3\%)$
	Pro-31 (3.4%)	Pro-11 $(4.9\%)$
	Ser-56 $(6.1\%)$	Ser-15(6.7%)
	Thr-64 $(6.9\%)$	Thr- $12(5.4\%)$
	Trp-33 $(3.6\%)$	Trp-6 $(2.7\%)$
	Tyr-24 $(2.6\%)$	Tyr-7 (3.1%)
	Val-60 $(6.5\%)$	Val-22 $(9.8\%)$
	Pyl-0 (0.0%)	Pyl-0 $(0.0\%)$
	Sec-0 $(0.0\%)$	Sec-0 $(0.0\%)$

TABLE 4.1: Physiochemical properties of NS5 & NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

## 4.3 Identification of Functional Domains

Numerous proteins have active regions called functional domains that participate in interactions between proteins and other substances [114]. NS5 has six functional domains and their residues i.e., Pyrv/Fd/Flavodoxin Oxrdtase N (residues 6 to 243), PFOR II (residues 265 to 347), Pyrv/ketoisovalerate Oxred cat (residues 426 to 610), 4Fe4S Fe-S-bd (residues 680 to 709) and 4Fe4S Fe-S-bd (residues 736 to765). Figure 4.5 shows the functional domains of protein NS5.



FIGURE 4.5: Functional Domain of Selected Protein NS5

NS2B-NS3 has two functional domains and their residues i.e., Flavi-NS2B (residues 1-83) and Flavivirus-NS3-S7 (residues 55-224). Figure 4.6 shows the functional domains of protein NS2B-NS3.



FIGURE 4.6: Functional Domain of Selected Protein NS2B-NS3

## 4.4 Structure of Protein Cleaned for Docking

The targeted proteins are cleaned in PyMol which will be used for molecular docking. Inhibitors were removed from the molecule and now the refined structures (Figures 4.7 and 4.8) of both proteins are all set for docking.



FIGURE 4.7: Refined structure of NS5



FIGURE 4.8: Refined structure of NS2B-NS3

## 4.5 Ligand Selection

Leaves of *C. papaya* contain many bioactive compounds which show a potential to target the dengue proteins. Selected proteins are involved in the process of replication and thus proven as a potential target for the discovery of drugs [72]. The discovery of structures of proteins i.e NS5 and NS2B-NS3 gives an inordinate prospect to find potential drugs as a cure for thrombocytopenia.

Table 4.2 illustrates the names and structures of selected ligands along with their molecular weight, molecular formula and minimized energies. Structures were obtained from PubChem and their energies have been minimized through Chem3D.

Compounds	Molecular	Molecular	Minimized Energy	Structure	
names	weight	weight formula			
Carpaine	478.7	$\mathrm{C}_{28}\mathrm{H}_{5}\mathrm{ON}_{2}\mathrm{O}_{4}$	55.7125	A State	
Kaempferol	286.24	$C_{15}H_{10}O_{6}$	21.7794	ALC .	
Ascorbic acid	176.12	$C_6H_8O_6$	12.7338	-	
Tocopherol	430.7	$C_{29}H_{50}O_2$	22.4002		
Dicoumarol	336.3	$\mathrm{C}_{19}\mathrm{H}_{12}\mathrm{O}_{6}$	7.7598	ALLA	
Cysteine	121.16	$\mathrm{C_{3}H_{7}NO_{23}S}$	-0.7090		
Homo- cysteine	135.19	$C_4H_9NO_2S$	-0.1615	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	
Dimethoxy phenol	154.16	$C_8H_{10}O_3$	4.1876		

TABLE 4.2: Selected ligands from C. papaya

Compounds names	Molecular weight	Molecular formula	Minimized Energy kcal/mol	Structure
Coumarin	146 14	CoHcOo	9.5426	Japan
Coumarin	110.11	0911602	$\rm kcal/mol$	en and
Glutamic acid	147.13	$C_5H_9NO_4$	-0.6497	- Agely
Pheny-	105 10			- Andrew
lalanine	105.19	$U_9H_{11}NO_2$	-3.5146	225
Caffeoyl	166 17	СНО		- and a second
alcohol	100.17	$\cup_9\Pi_{10}\cup_3$	-1.4014	24 Laps
Umbelli	169 14	СНО	0 5740	-
-feron	102.14	$\cup_{9}\Pi_{6}\cup_{3}$	8.9749	oh the factor
Methyl				
nonyl	170.29	$\mathrm{C}_{11}\mathrm{H}_{22}\mathrm{O}$	13.0070	ٛ <del>ؠ</del> ڟٚۑڟۑڟۑڟ
ketone				
Folic	<i>441 4</i>	C10H10N-Oc	18 5090	at the second
acid	771.7	$\cup_{19}$	16.0969	1948 ·
Caffeic	180 16	C <sub>o</sub> H <sub>o</sub> O <sub>2</sub>	7 9745	2 And an
acid	100.10	0911804	-(.2(43	فيهجونه يريد
p-				
coumaric	164.16	$\mathrm{C}_{9}\mathrm{H}_{8}\mathrm{O}_{3}$	-0.5365	H\$.
acid				
5,7-				• • · · · ·
dimethoxy	206.19	$\mathrm{C}_{11}\mathrm{H}_{10}\mathrm{O}_4$	24.9949	the second
coumarin				B
Chlorogenic	354.31	$C_{16}H_{10}O_{0}$	13 0120	Sec. 1
acid	001.01	$\cup_{16}$ 11 <sub>18</sub> $\cup_{9}$	10.9149	- 74
Protocatechuic acid	154.12	$\mathrm{C_7H_6O_4}$	-4.5060	¥7

TABLE 4.2: Selected ligands from C. papaya

## 4.6 Virtual Screening

An online tool (PkCSM) has been used to find the Lipinski rule of five. According to that rule, the logP value of the molecule should be limited to 5, molecular weight should be below 500, the maximum number of Hydrogen bond acceptors should be 10 and the maximum number of Hydrogen bond donors should be 5 [89]. The Lipinski Rule of Five has been applied to selected ligands and the results are given in Table 4.3.

Ligands	LogP Value	Molecular Weight (g/mol)	Rotatable Bonds	H-bond Acceptor	H-bond Donor
Carpaine	5.566	478.718	0	6	2
Kaempferol	2.282	286.239	1	6	4
Ascorbic acid	-1.407	176.124	2	6	4
Tocopherol	8.840	430.717	12	2	1
Dicoumarol	2.901	336.299	2	6	2
Cysteine	-0.671	121.161	2	3	3
Homocysteine	-0.281	135.188	3	3	3
Dimethoxy	1 400	154 165	0	3	1
phenol	1.409	104.100	2	5	1
Coumarin	1.793	146.145	0	2	0
Glutamic acid	-0.736	147.13	4	3	3
Phenylalanine	0.641	165.192	3	2	2
Caffeoyl alcohol	1.103	166.176	2	3	3
Umbelliferon	1.498	162.144	0	3	1
Methylnonyl	2 716	170 206	0	1	0
ketone	5.710	170.290	0	1	0
Folic acid	-0.0448	441.404	9	9	6
Caffeic acid	1.195	180.159	2	3	3

TABLE 4.3: Applicability of Lipinski Rule on Selected Ligands

Ligands	LogP Value	Molecular Weight (g/mol)	Rotatable Bonds	H-bond Acceptor	H-bond Donor	
p-coumaric	1 49	164 16	2	2	2	
acid	1.10	101.10	-	-	-	
5,7-dimethoxy	1 810	206 197	2	4	0	
coumarin	1.010	200.151		-	0	
Chlorogenic	-0.645	354 311	Δ	8	6	
acid	0.040	004.011	т	0	0	
Protocatechuic	0 796	15/ 191	1	3	3	
acid	0.130	104.121	Ţ	0	0	

TABLE 4.3: Applicability of Lipinski Rule on Selected Ligands

Table 4.3 shows that out of 20 selected ligands, 4 ligands do not follow one rule of Lipinski i.e., Carpaine and Tocopherol have logP values greater than 5, whereas, Folic acid and Chlorogenic acid consist of 6 hydrogen bond donors.

## 4.7 ADMET Properties of Ligands

pkCSM, an online tool, is used to identify ADMET properties by placing input of ligands as SMILES. These properties give the kinetic and pharmacological activity of a compound and also the effect on drug level [102].

#### 4.7.1 Absorption

A compound reaches the target cells after passing through the bloodstream, most frequently through mucous surfaces, for instance, the digestive tract. The digestive tract works on absorption, termed intestinal absorption [103]. It includes Water Solubility, CaCO<sub>2</sub> Permeability, Intestinal Absorption (human), Skin Permeability, P-glycoprotein Substrate, and P-glycoprotein I and II Inhibitors. Water solubility shows the solubility of the compound in water, however,  $CaCO_2$ Permeability and Skin Permeability are the permeability coefficients. Intestinal Absorption is the absorbing value in the small intestine. P-glycoprotein Substrate is the biological barrier for chemicals and other toxins and the P-glycoprotein I and II give the prediction of the presence or absence of inhibitors [104]. Some properties of absorption of nominated ligands are given in Table 4.4 and 4.5.

	Watan	$CaCO_2$	Intestinal	Skin
Ligands		Perme	Absorption	Perme
	Solubility	ability	(Human)	ability
Carpaine	-4.724	0.849	91.891	-2.782
Kaempferol	-3.04	0.032	74.29	-2.735
Ascorbic acid	-1.556	-0.255	39.154	-2.955
Tocopherol	-6.901	1.345	89.782	-2.683
Dicoumarol	-3.983	0.203	93.074	-2.736
Cysteine	-2.888	0.386	74.807	-2.737
Homocysteine	-2.889	0.519	73.687	-2.735
Dimethoxy	1 /	1 794	02 790	9.745
phenol	-1.4	1.734	95.769	-2.740
Coumarin	-1.517	1.649	97.344	-1.921
Glutamic acid	-2.892	-0.487	28.979	-2.735
Phenylalanine	-2.89	0.62	76.21	-2.734
Caffeoyl alcohol	-0.939	-0.939	74.333	-2.949
Umbelliferon	-2.131	1.206	94.551	-2.6
Methylnonyl	1 691	1 196	04.005	1 999
ketone	-4.004	1.400	94.005	-1.000
Folic acid	-2.88	-0.877	1.108	-2.735
Caffeic acid	-2.33	0.634	69.407	-2.722
p-coumaric	0 279	1 91	03 404	9 715
acid	-2.318	1.21	yə.494	-2.(10

TABLE 4.4: Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands.

	Waton	$CaCO_2$	Intestinal	Skin
Ligands		Perme	Absorption	Perme
	Solubility	ability	(Human)	ability
5,7-dimethoxy	-2.12	1 279	98 027	-2 41
-coumarin	2.12	1.210	00.021	2.11
Chlorogenic acid	-2.449	-0.84	36.377	-2.735
Protocatechuic acid	-2.069	0.49	71.174	-2.727

TABLE 4.4: Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands.

Each compound's water solubility shows solubility at 25. The results of absorption in Table 4.4 demonstrate the good  $CaCO_2$  solubility of tocopherol, dimethoxyphenol, coumarin, umbelliferon, methyl nonyl ketone, and 5,7-dimethoxycoumarin. Only folic and glutamic acids exhibit low intestinal absorption among all the ligands. All of the ligands are expected to be skin permeable based on the skin permeability data.

Ligande	P-glycoprotein	P-glycoprotein	P-glycoprotein
Ligands	Substrate	I Inhibitor	II Inhibitor
Carpaine	Yes	No	No
Kaempferol	Yes	No	No
Ascorbic acid	No	No	No
Tocopherol	No	No	Yes
Dicoumarol	Yes	No	No
Cysteine	No	No	No
Homocysteine	No	No	No
Dimethoxy	No	No	No
phenol	NO	NO	NO
Coumarin	No	No	No
Glutamic acid	No	No	No
Phenylalanine	No	No	No

TABLE 4.5: Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands.

Liganda	P-glycoprotein	P-glycoprotein	P-glycoprotein
Liganus	Substrate	I Inhibitor	II Inhibitor
Caffeoyl alcohol	No	No	No
Umbelliferon	No	No	No
Methylnonyl	No	No	No
ketone	NO	NO	NO
Folic acid	Yes	No	No
Caffeic acid	No	No	No
p-coumaric acid	No	No	No
5,7-dimethoxy	No	No	No
coumarin	NO	NO	NO
Chlorogenic acid	Yes	No	No
Protocatechuic acid	No	No	No

 TABLE 4.5: Absorption Properties of Selected Ligands.

Table 4.5 shows that Carpaine, Kaempferol, Dicoumarol, Folic acid, and the chlorogenic acid act as the P-glycoprotein substrate. P-glycoprotein-I is not inhibited by any ligand. However, just Tocopherol is the only inhibitor of P-glycoprotein II among all the ligands.

#### 4.7.2 Distribution

According to pharmacology, distribution is the transmission of a drug inside the body from one spot to another. The drug enters the systemic circulation through absorption and is distributed into the intracellular and interstitial fluid.

The volume of Distribution (VDss) is the estimation of how much medication will be needed overall to spread evenly throughout the blood plasma. The Blood-Brain Barrier, which shields the brain from external substances, is a crucial factor. It thus aids in anticipating CNS targets, adverse effects, and non-CNS treatments alike [105]. Distributive properties of ligands are shown in Table 4.6.

	VD	Fraction	חחח	CNC
Ligands	V Dss	Unbound	BBB	CNS
	(Human)	(Human)	Permeability	Permeability
Carpaine	0.812	0.378	-0.351	-2.948
Kaempferol	1.274	0.178	-0.939	-2.228
Ascorbic acid	0.218	0.825	-0.985	-3.217
Tocopherol	0.709	0	0.876	-1.669
Dicoumarol	-0.379	0.025	-0.393	-2.051
Cysteine	-0.486	0.49	-0.398	-3.476
Homocysteine	-0.51	0.464	-0.365	-3.464
Dimethoxy	0 190	0 425	0.204	0.006
phenol	-0.129	0.455	-0.204	-2.220
Coumarin	-0.143	0.367	-0.007	-1.926
Glutamic acid	-0.291	0.414	-0.692	-3.554
Phenylalanine	-0.326	0.492	-0.271	-2.675
Caffeoyl alcohol	-0.047	0.503	-0.344	-2.566
Umbelliferon	0.032	0.432	-0.278	-2.741
Methylnonyl	0 294	0.217	0.604	1 027
ketone	0.324	0.317	0.094	-1.907
Folic acid	0.046	0.37	1.615	-4.262
Caffeic acid	-1.098	0.529	-0.647	-2.608
p-coumaric	1 151	0 499	0.995	0 /10
acid	-1.101	0.428	-0.223	-2.418
5,7-dimethoxy	0.240	0.210	0.154	0.97
coumarin	-0.349	0.910	0.104	-2.01
Chlorogenic acid	0.581	0.658	-1.407	-3.856

TABLE 4.6: Distributive Properties of Selected Ligands

Ligands	VDss (Human)	Fraction Unbound (Human)	BBB Permeability	CNS Permeability
Protocatechuic acid	-1.298	0.648	-0.683	-3.305

TABLE 4.6: Distributive Properties of Selected Ligands

The parameters used to establish the distribution properties (Table 4.6) includes the VDss, which demonstrates the levels of folic acid, ascorbic acid, dimethoxyphenol, coumarin, caffeine acid, umbelliferon, and methyl nonyl ketone within the normal range. The fraction of these ligands that are unbound indicates that, of the total dose, this proportion will not bind to the protein. Only methyl nonyl ketone and folic acid, according to BBB permeability values, can easily pass the brain barrier. Only three ligands—tocopherol, coumarin, and methyl nonyl ketone—can penetrate the central nervous system.

#### 4.7.3 Metabolism

Metabolism is the catabolic and anabolic enzymatic reactions of compounds in the body. The cytochrome P450 (CYP) enzyme is thought to be the most important enzyme in drug metabolism and is used to anticipate how compounds will be metabolized by the CYP enzyme [105]. The metabolic properties of nominated ligand compounds are given in Table 4.7 and 4.8.

Ligands	CYP2D6	CYP3A4	CYP1A2	CYP2C19
	Substrate	Substrate	Inhibitor	Inhibitor
Carpaine	No	Yes	No	No
Kaempferol	No	No	Yes	No
Ascorbic acid	No	No	No	No
Tocopherol	No	Yes	No	Yes
Dicoumarol	No	Yes	Yes	Yes

TABLE 4.7: Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands.

Ligande	CYP2D6	CYP3A4	CYP1A2	CYP2C19
Liganus	Substrate	Substrate	Inhibitor	Inhibitor
Cysteine	No	No	No	No
Homocysteine	No	No	No	No
Dimethoxy	No	No	No	No
phenol	INO	INO	NO	NO
Coumarin	No	No	Yes	No
Glutamic acid	No	No	No	No
Phenylalanine	No	No	No	No
Caffeoyl alcohol	No	No	No	No
Umbelliferon	No	No	Yes	No
Methylnonyl	N	N	N	N
ketone	INO	INO	NO	NO
Folic acid	No	No	No	No
Caffeic acid	No	No	No	No
p-coumaric acid	No	No	No	No
5,7-dimethoxy	N	N.	V	N
coumarin	INO	INO	res	INO
Chlorogenic acid	No	No	No	No
Protocatechuic acid	No	No	No	No

 TABLE 4.7: Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands.

According to Table 4.7, no ligand is a CYP2D6 substrate. Substrates for CYP3A4 include carpaine, tocopherol, and dicoumarol.

Ligands	CYP2C9	CYP2D6	CYP3A4
Liganus	Inhibitor	Inhibitor	Inhibitor
Carpaine	No	No	No
Kaempferol	No	No	No
Ascorbic acid	No	No	No

 TABLE 4.8: Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands.

Liganda	CYP2C9	CYP2D6	CYP3A4	
Ligands	Inhibitor	Inhibitor	Inhibitor	
Tocopherol	No	No	No	
Dicoumarol	Yes	No	No	
Cysteine	No	No	No	
Homocysteine	No	No	No	
Dimethoxy	No	No	No	
phenol	INO	INO	INO	
Coumarin	No	No	No	
Glutamic acid	No	No	No	
Phenylalanine	No	No	No	
Caffeoyl alcohol	No	No	No	
Umbelliferon	No	No	No	
Methylnonyl	N	N	N	
ketone	INO	INO	INO	
Folic acid	No	No	No	
Caffeic acid	No	No	No	
p-coumaric	N	N	N	
acid	INO	INO	INO	
5,7-dimethoxy	N	N	N	
coumarin	INO	INO	No	
Chlorogenic				
acid	No	No	No	
Protocatechuic				
acid	No	No	No	

 TABLE 4.8: Metabolic Properties of Selected Ligands.

CYP2C19 is inhibited by tocopherol and dicoumarol. The sole CYP2C9 inhibitor is dicoumarol. All of the ligands do not act as CYP2D6 and CYP3A4 inhibitors (Table 4.7 and 4.8).

#### 4.7.4 Excretion

The process in which compounds and their metabolites are removed through kidneys or feces is termed excretion. The kidney or the liver, where medications are removed in the form of urine or bile, respectively, can carry out the drug excretion process [105]. Many medications are excreted by the body without being metabolized. Although the idea of "Renal Clearance" of medications had long been widely acknowledged, it has only lately been obvious that unmodified pharmaceuticals can also be "Totally Cleared" by the liver [106]. Properties of excretion of compounds are shown in Table 4.9.

Ligands	Total Clearance	Renal OCT2 Substrate
Carpaine	0.856	No
Kaempferol	0.477	No
Ascorbic acid	0.631	No
Tocopherol	0.794	No
Dicoumarol	0.698	No
Cysteine	0.53	No
Homocysteine	0.503	No
Dimethoxy phenol	0.213	No
Coumarin	0.97	No
Glutamic acid	0.205	No
Phenylalanine	0.452	No
Caffeoyl alcohol	0.157	No
Umbelliferon	0.706	No
Methyl nonyl ketone	1.574	No
Folic acid	0.527	No
Caffeic acid	0.508	No
p-coumaric acid	0.662	No

TABLE 4.9: Excretory Properties of Selected Ligands.

Ligands	Total Clearance	Renal OCT2 Substrate
5,7-dimethoxy	0.832	No
coumarin	0.052	
Chlorogenic acid	0.307	No
Protocatechuic acid	0.551	No

TABLE 4.9: Excretory Properties of Selected Ligands.

Since none of these ligands are renal OCT2 substrates, as shown in Table 4.9, they won't be excreted from the body, hence the overall clearance values are presented in accordance.

#### 4.7.5 Toxicity

It is the specific amount to which an organism cannot be damaged by a particular chemical substance.

Individual hazardous chemical limits are measured by the maximum tolerable dose (MRTD). The ability of any substance to result in the blockage of potassium channels triggered by the hERG is determined using the hERG I and II inhibitors model. A chemical's lethal dose ( $LD_{50}$ ) is the concentration that results in the death of 50% of test animals (mice). While LOAEL seeks to determine the lowest dosage of a molecule with a significant adverse effect, it forecasts the toxicity of a likely compound.

Hepatotoxicity is a significant safety concern during drug development since it indicates a medicine's potential to harm the liver. A possible side effect of skincare and applied products is skin sensitivity. A protozoan bacteria called *T. pyriformis* produces a toxin that limits growth by 50% and is frequently used as a toxic endpoint (IGC<sub>50</sub>) [107]. The toxicity values of ligands are shown in Tables 4.10 and 4.11.

	Max.			Oral Rat	Oral Rat
	Tolerated	hERG	hERG	Acute	Chronic
Ligands	Dose	Ι	II	Toxicity	Toxicity
		inhibitor	inhibitor		
	(Human)			$(\mathrm{LD}_{50})$	(LOAEL)
Carpaine	-0.685	No	No	2.968	-1.167
Kaempferol	0.531	No	No	2.449	2.505
Ascorbic acid	1.598	No	No	1.063	3.186
Tocopherol	0.775	No	Yes	2.072	1.987
Dicoumarol	0.395	No	Yes	2.396	2.167
Cysteine	1.133	No	No	1.982	2.6
Homocysteine	1.234	No	No	2.062	2.626
Dimethoxy	1 919	$\mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{O}}$	No	2.047	1 092
phenol	1.210	NO	NO	2.047	1.920
Coumarin	0.435	No	No	2.112	1.903
Glutamic acid	0.898	No	No	2.443	2.444
Phenylalanine	0.935	No	No	2.193	1.954
Caffeoyl	1 999	$\mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{O}}$	No	2.010	1 026
alcohol	1.202	NO	NO	2.019	1.950
Umbelliferon	0.689	No	No	2.047	1.751
Methylnonyl	0.270	Ne	Ne	1 609	0.00
ketone	0.379	NO	NO	1.002	2.33
Folic acid	-0.586	No	No	2.67	3.153
Caffeic acid	1.145	No	No	2.383	2.092
p-coumaric	1 111	No	No	9 155	0 524
acid	1.111	INO	INU	2.100	⊿.JJ4
5,7-dimethoxy	0.447	No	No	2 106	2 328
coumarin	0.111	110	110	2.100	2.020

TABLE 4.10: Toxicity values of Selected Ligands

	Max.			Oral Rat	Oral Rat
	Tolerated	hERG	hERG	Acute	Chronic
Ligands	Dose	Ι	II	Toxicity	Toxicity
		inhibitor	inhibitor		
	(Human)			$(\mathrm{LD}_{50})$	(LOAEL)
Chlorogenic acid	-0.134	No	No	1.973	2.982
Protocatechuic acid	0.814	No	No	2.423	2.021

TABLE 4.10: Toxicity values of Selected Ligands

According to Table 4.10, Tocopherol and Dicoumarol are hERG II inhibitors that may cause potassium channel inhibition and ultimately lead to QT syndrome. Chlorogenic acid, p-coumaric acid, Folic acid, homocysteine, and ascorbic acid have more values of Oral Rat Chronic Toxicity (LOAEL) than its normal range i.e. it should be less than 2.5 Log/mg, which means these ligands are toxic.

Ligande	Hepato-	Skin	T. Pyriform is	Minnow
Liganus	toxicity	Sensitization	toxicity	toxicity
Carpaine	No	No	0.285	1.127
Kaempferol	No	No	0.312	2.885
Ascorbic acid	No	No	0.285	4.386
Tocopherol	No	No	1.017	-3.324
Dicoumarol	Yes	No	0.33	0.762
Cysteine	No	No	0.149	2.992
Homocysteine	No	No	0.284	2.662
Dimethoxy	No	No	0 190	9 101
phenol	INU	INU	-0.129	2.101

TABLE 4.11: Toxicity values of Selected Ligands

Ligande	Hepato-	Skin	T.Pyriformis	Minnow
Liganus	toxicity	Sensitization	toxicity	toxicity
Coumarin	No	No	0.365	1.555
Glutamic acid	No	No	0.285	3.182
Phenylalanine	Yes	No	0.269	2.247
Caffeoyl alcohol	No	Yes	0.05	2.487
Umbelliferon	Yes	No	0.546	1.714
Methylnonyl	No	Vac	1 465	0.949
ketone	NO	ies	1.405	0.240
Folic acid	Yes	No	0.285	4.009
Caffeic acid	No	No	0.293	2.246
p-coumaric acid	No	No	0.319	1.607
5,7-dimethoxy	N	NI -	0 565	1 509
coumarin	NO	NO	0.305	1.395
Chlorogenic acid	No	No	0.285	5.741
Protocatechuic acid	No	No	0.273	2.451

TABLE 4.11: Toxicity values of Selected Ligands

Dicoumarol, Phenylalanine, and Folic Acid are identified in Table 4.11 as Hepatotoxic, indicating that they are toxic to the liver and may cause liver damage. Caffeoyl alcohol and Methyl nonyl ketone are marked positive for skin sensitization. Tocopherol and Methyl nonyl ketone are minnow toxic.

### 4.8 Molecular Docking

Ligand-protein is a potent tool for Computer-Aided Drug Discovery (CADD). Cavity-detection-guided Blind Docking (CB-Dock) is used to execute molecular docking of proteins and ligands [108]. CB-Dock displays result in five distinct poses and with an interactive 3D visualization. The lowest vina score (in kJ/m) is selected as the best pose. After getting proteins and ligands ready for docking, CB Dock, an established online tool for blind auto docking, does the docking. The architecture of the protein, ligands, refinements, and net speed all affect the docking process' outcomes and time requirements. Five potential possess and receptor models were provided by CB Dock, and the best possess model was chosen by looking at many characteristics including vina score and cavity size, among others. CB Dock, a user-friendly blind docking web server, predicts and estimates a binding site for a given protein, calculates centers and sizes using a novel rotation cavity detection method, and docks with the well-known docking program Auto dock Vina. This allows for molecular docking without knowledge of binding sites [109]. CB-Dock examines the input files and converts them to pdb. formatted files after receiving the input files (Protein file in pdb. format and ligand file in sdf. format). The best binding/vina scores of all ligands with NS5 and NS2B-NS3 are given in Table 4.12, table 4.13 and table 4.14 and table 4.15.

	Binding	Cavity	H-Bond	H-Bond	
Compounds	score	sizo	Donor	Accoptor	
	(kJ/mol)	5120	Donor	Acceptor	
Carpaine	-9.6	2919	2	6	
Kaempferol	-8.1	2919	4	6	
Ascorbic acid	-5.9	1660	4	6	
Tocopherol	-6.5	2919	1	2	
Dicoumarol	-8.7	2919	2	6	
Cysteine	-4.0	1660	3	3	
Homocysteine	-4.2	2919	3	3	
Dimethoxy phenol	-5.3	1660	1	3	
Coumarin	-6.6	2919	0	2	
Glutamic acid	-5.2	1660	3	3	
Phenylalanine	-6.5	2919	2	2	
Caffeoyl alcohol	-6.1	2919	3	3	
Umbelliferon	-6.5	1660	1	3	
Methyl nonyl ketone	-5.0	470	0	1	

TABLE 4.12: Ligands with best binding score values with NS5

	Binding	Cavity	H-Bond	H-Bond	
Compounds	score	sizo	Donor	Accoptor	
	(kJ/mol)	SIZE	Donor	Acceptor	
Folic acid	-9.0	2919	6	9	
Caffeic acid	-6.5	1660	3	3	
p-coumaric acid	-6.3	2919	2	2	
5,7-dimethoxycoumarin	-6.1	1660	0	4	
Chlorogenic acid	-8.4	2919	6	8	
Protocatechuic acid	-6.3	2919	3	3	

TABLE 4.12: Ligands with best binding score values with NS5

TABLE 4.13: Ligands with best binding score values with NS5  $\,$ 

			Rotatable
Compounds	LogP value	Mol. Weight	Bonds
Carpaine	5.566	478.71	0
Kaempferol	2.282	286.23	1
Ascorbic acid	-1.407	176.12	2
Tocopherol	8.840	430.71	12
Dicoumarol	2.901	336.29	2
Cysteine	-0.671	121.16	2
Homocysteine	-0.281	135.18	3
Dimethoxy phenol	1.409	154.16	2
Coumarin	1.793	146.14	0
Glutamic acid	-0.736	147.13	4
Phenylalanine	0.641	165.19	3
Caffeoyl alcohol	1.103	166.17	2
Umbelliferon	1.498	162.14	0
Methyl nonyl ketone	3.716	170.29	8
Folic acid	-0.044	441.40	9
Caffeic acid	1.195	180.15	2
p-coumaric acid	1.49	164.16	2

Compounds	LogP value	Mol. Weight	Rotatable
			Bonds
5,7-dimethoxycoumarin	1.810	206.19	2
Chlorogenic acid	-0.645	354.31	4
Protocatechuic acid	0.796	154.12	1

TABLE 4.13: Ligands with best binding score values with NS5

Table 4.12 and 4.13 shows the docking score of ligands and NS5. It also clarifies the logP value of the selected ligands. Carpaine indicates the highest binding score and Cysteine has the lowest one among all ligands. Chlorogenic acid and Folic acid have 6 hydrogen bonds.

TABLE 4.14: Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3

	Binding	Cavity	H-Bond	H-Bond
Compounds	Score		Den en	
	(kJ/mol)	Size	Donor	Accepter
Carpaine	-8.5	5928	2	6
Kaempferol	-8.4	5928	4	6
Ascorbic acid	-6.6	5928	4	6
Tocopherol	-7.8	211	1	2
Dicoumarol	-8.9	5928	2	6
Cysteine	-4.0	5928	3	3
Homocysteine	-4.5	5928	3	3
Dimethoxy phenol	-5.7	5928	1	3
Coumarin	-6.1	5928	0	2
Glutamic acid	-5.7	5928	3	3
Phenylalanine	-5.5	5928	2	2
Caffeoyl alcohol	-6.6	5928	3	3
Umbelliferon	-6.5	5928	1	3
Methyl nonyl ketone	-5.5	5928	0	1
Folic acid	-9.8	5928	6	9

Compounds	Binding	Cavity	H-Bond	H-Bond
	Score		Donon	Acconton
	(kJ/mol)	Size	Donor	Accepter
Caffeic acid	-7.1	5928	3	3
p-coumaric acid	-6.4	5928	2	2
5,7-dimethoxy	6.2	5028	0	4
coumarin	-0.2	0920	0	4
Chlorogenic acid	-8.1	5928	6	8
Protocatechuic acid	-6.7	5928	3	3

TABLE 4.14: Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

TABLE 4.15: Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

Compounds	LogP value	Mol Weight	Rotatable
		wor. weight	Bonds
Carpaine	5.566	478.71	0
Kaempferol	2.282	286.23	1
Ascorbic acid	-1.407	176.12	2
Tocopherol	8.840	430.71	12
Dicoumarol	2.901	336.29	2
Cysteine	-0.671	121.16	2
Homocysteine	-0.281	135.18	3
Dimethoxy phenol	1.409	154.16	2
Coumarin	1.793	146.14	0
Glutamic acid	-0.736	147.13	4
Phenylalanine	0.641	165.19	3
Caffeoyl alcohol	1.103	166.17	2
Umbelliferon	1.498	162.14	0
Methyl nonyl ketone	3.716	170.29	8
Folic acid	-0.044	441.40	9
Caffeic acid	1.195	180.15	2
p-coumaric acid	1.49	164.16	2

Compounds	LogP value	Mol. Weight	Rotatable
			Bonds
5,7-dimethoxycoumarin	1.810	206.19	2
Chlorogenic acid	-0.645	354.31	4
Protocatechuic acid	0.796	154.12	1

TABLE 4.15: Ligands with best binding score values with NS2B-NS3

Table 4.14 and 4.15 shows the docking score of ligands and NS2B-NS3. It also illustrates the logP value of the selected ligands. Folic acid indicates the highest binding score and Cysteine has the lowest one among all ligands. Chlorogenic acid and Folic acid have 6 hydrogen bonds.

# 4.9 Interaction of Ligands and Nominated Protein

In Computational Biology, LigPlot produces a schematic 2D depiction of the protein-ligand complex, which eases the prompt assessment of various enzyme complexes and exhibits a simple and explanatory illustration of the intermolecular interactions and their strengths, these comprise hydrophobic interactions, hydrogen bonds, and atom approachability [100]. Investigation of docked complex (.pdb) through LigPlot creates automatically schematic illustrations of protein-ligand interactions for specified PDB files [101]. 2D demonstrations of 20 designated docked complexes with NS5 are revealed in figures from Figure 4.9 to Figure 4.28 and NS2B-NS3 are shown from Figure 4.29 to Figure 4.48. Hydrophobic interactions and hydrogen bonding amongst proteins and particular twenty ligands were shown in Appendix as Tables 5.1 and 5.2.

#### 2D representations of docked complexes of NS5

Figure 4.9 shows the Carpaine-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy



(Ser796, Ile797, Cys709, Glu459, Lys461, Arg472, Asp539, Asn610, Asp663).

FIGURE 4.9: 2D depiction of docked complex Carpaine-NS5

Figure 4.10 shows the Kaempferol-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.1. It has no Hydrogen bond and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Thr794, Trp795, Arg737).



FIGURE 4.10: 2D depiction of docked complex Kaempferol-NS5

Figure 4.11 shows the Ascorbic acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.9. It has one Hydrogen bond (Amino acid: Thr794) and consists of one Hydrophobic interaction (Trp795).



FIGURE 4.11: 2D depiction of docked complex Ascorbic acid-NS5

Figure 4.12 shows the Tocopherol-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.5. It has no Hydrogen bond and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Arg472, Asp539, Ala473).



FIGURE 4.12: 2D depiction of docked complex Tocopherol-NS5

Figure 4.13 shows the Dicoumarol-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.7. It has no Hydrogen bond and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Arg737, Thr793, Thr794).



FIGURE 4.13: 2D depiction of docked complex Dicoumarol-NS5

Figure 4.14 shows the Cysteine-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -4.0. It has three Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Thr793, Tyr758, Lys460) and consists of five Hydrophobic interactions (Gln742, Thr794, Arg792, Glu459, Trp795).



FIGURE 4.14: 2D depiction of docked complex Cysteine-NS5

Figure 4.15 shows the Homocysteine-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -4.2. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Tyr758, Thr793) and consists of two Hydrophobic interactions (Lys460, Arg792).



FIGURE 4.15: 2D depiction of docked complex Homocysteine-NS5

Figure 4.16 shows the Dimethoxyphenol-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.3. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Thr793, Arg737, Lys460, Tyr758) and consists of four Hydrophobic interactions (Gln742, Arg792, Thr794, Glu459).



FIGURE 4.16: 2D depiction of docked complex Dimethoxyphenol-NS5

Figure 4.17 shows the Coumarin-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.6. It has no Hydrogen bonds and consists of eight Hydrophobic interactions (Arg458, Lys460, Glu459, Gln742, Thr794, Thr793, Trp795, Arg792).



FIGURE 4.17: 2D depiction of docked complex Coumarin-NS5
Figure 4.18 shows the Glutamic acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.2. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Thr793, Arg737, Lys460, Tyr758) and consists of five Hydrophobic interactions (Gln742, Arg792, Thr794, Trp795, Glu459).



FIGURE 4.18: 2D depiction of docked complex Glutamic acid-NS5

Figure 4.19 shows the Phenylalanine-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.5. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Arg737, Lys460) and consists of six Hydrophobic interactions (Arg458, Gln742, Arg792, Thr794, Trp795, Thr793).



FIGURE 4.19: 2D depiction of docked complex Phenylalanine-NS5

Figure 4.20 shows the Caffeoyl alcohol-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.1. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Arg737, Lys460) and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Trp795, Lys461, Glu459).



FIGURE 4.20: 2D depiction of docked complex Caffeoyl alcohol-NS5

Figure 4.21 shows the Umbelliferon-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.5. It has three Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Arg737, Lys460, Arg458)

and consists of seven Hydrophobic interactions (Met343, Gln742, Trp795, Thr793, Tyr758Arg792, Thr794, Glu459).



FIGURE 4.21: 2D depiction of docked complex Umbelliferon-NS5

Figure 4.22 shows the Methyl nonyl ketone-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.0. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Arg579, Glu287) and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Trp478, Thr449, Lys283).



FIGURE 4.22: 2D depiction of docked complex Methyl nonyl ketone-NS5

Figure 4.23 shows the Folic acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -9.0. It has five Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ile797, Ser796, Gln603, Thr606, Asp663) and consists of nine Hydrophobic interactions (Trp475, Tyr607, Ser661, Ser710, Gly662, Cys709, His798, Ile 474, Asp 539).



FIGURE 4.23: 2D depiction of docked complex Folic acid-NS5

Figure 4.24 shows the Caffeic acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.5. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Arg729, Thr794, Arg729, Trp795) and consists of seven Hydrophobic interactions (Gln742, Met343, Arg458, Arg737, Thr793, Lys460, Tyr758).



FIGURE 4.24: 2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic acid-NS5

Figure 4.25 shows the p-coumaric acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.3. It has three Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Arg792, Lys460, Arg737) and consists of seven Hydrophobic interactions (Met343, Glu742, Arg458, Glu459, Thr793, Trp795, Thr794).



FIGURE 4.25: 2D depiction of docked complex p-coumaric acid-NS5

Figure 4.26 shows the 5,7-dimethoxycoumarin-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.1. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Thr793, Tyr758) and consists of two Hydrophobic interactions (Arg737, Lys460).



FIGURE 4.26: 2D depiction of docked complex 5,7-dimethoxycoumarin-NS5

Figure 4.27 shows the Chlorogenic acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.4. It has no Hydrogen bonds and consists of two Hydrophobic interactions (Thr794, Trp795).



FIGURE 4.27: 2D depiction of docked complex Chlorogenic acid-NS5

Figure 4.28 shows the Protocatechuic acid-NS5 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.3. It has three Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Thr606, Ser601, Trp475) and consists of six Hydrophobic interactions (Asp539, Ala473, Gln603, Gly600, Gly602, Arg599).



FIGURE 4.28: 2D depiction of docked complex Protocatechuic acid-NS5

The information about the hydrogen bond and hydrophobic interactions between the chosen ligand and receptor protein NS5 is displayed in Appendix as Table 5.1.

#### 2D representations of docked complexes of NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.29 shows the Carpaine-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.5. It has one Hydrogen bond (Amino acid: Ser48) and consists of eight Hydrophobic interactions (Arg1059, Arg1064, Met51, Ser1056, Lys1073, Val1072, Val49, Asp50).



FIGURE 4.29: 2D depiction of docked compound Carpaine-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.30 shows the Kaempferol- NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.4. It has two Hydrogen bonds and no Hydrophobic interactions.



FIGURE 4.30: 2D depiction of docked compound Kaempferol-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.31 shows the Ascorbic acid- NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.6. It has no Hydrogen bond and consists of four Hydrophobic interactions (Ser1135, Tyr1150, Arg1029, Thr1027).



FIGURE 4.31: 2D depiction of docked compound Ascorbic acid-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.32 shows the Tocopherol-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -7.8. It has no Hydrogen bond and consists of five Hydrophobic interactions (Leu1085, Val1146, Leu1076, Trp1083, Gly1148).



FIGURE 4.32: 2D depiction of docked compound Tocopherol-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.33 shows the Dicoumarol-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.9. It has one Hydrogen bond (Amino acid: Arg1029) and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Pro1131, Tyr1130, Gly1151).



FIGURE 4.33: 2D depiction of docked compound Dicoumarol-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.34 shows the Cysteine-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -4.0. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ser1135, Thr1134, Gly1133, Thr1034) and consists of four Hydrophobic interactions (Val1036, Ala1132, Pro1131, Arg1029).



FIGURE 4.34: 2D depiction of docked complex Cysteine-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.35 shows the Homocysteine-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -4.5. It has one Hydrogen bond (Amino acid: Tyr1130) and consists of three Hydrophobic interactions (Tyr1150, Thr1034, Ser1135).



FIGURE 4.35: 2D depiction of docked complex Homocysteine-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.36 shows the Dimethoxyphenol-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.7. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Tyr 1130, Tyr1150) and consists of ten Hydrophobic interactions (Asp1129, Ala1132, Pro1131, Thr1034, Gly1133, Ser1135, Gly1151, Arg1029, Leu1128, Gly1032).



FIGURE 4.36: 2D depiction of docked complex Dimethoxy phenol-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.37 shows the Coumarin-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.1. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Thr1034, Thr1027) and consists of seven Hydrophobic interactions (Met51, Lys1054, His1051, Val1036, Ala1132, Gly1133, Arg1029).



FIGURE 4.37: 2D depiction of docked complex Coumarin-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.38 shows the Glutamic acid-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.7. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ser1135, Thr1134, Gly1133, Thr1034) and consists of nine Hydrophobic interactions (Asp1129, Gly1151, Tyr1150, Pro1131, Tyr1130, Ala1132, Gly1032, Arg1029, Ser1033).



FIGURE 4.38: 2D depiction of docked complex Glutamic acid-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.39 shows the Phenylalanine-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.5. It has one Hydrogen bond (Amino acid: Val1036) and consists of five Hydrophobic interactions (Gln1035, Thr1034, Val1036, Gly1133, His1051).



FIGURE 4.39: 2D depiction of docked complex Phenylalanine-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.40 shows the Caffeoyl alcohol-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.6. It has one Hydrogen bond (Amino acid: Val1126) and consists of two Hydrophobic interactions (Tyr1150, Gly1151).



FIGURE 4.40: 2D depiction of docked complex Caffeoyl alcohol-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.41 shows the Umbelliferon-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.5. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ala1087, Val1146) and consists of eight Hydrophobic interactions (Leu1085, Ile1147, Val1155, Gly1153, Leu1076, Asn1152, Gly1148, Trp1083).



FIGURE 4.41: 2D depiction of docked complex Umbelliferon-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.42 shows the Methyl nonyl ketone-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -5.5. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ser1135, Thr1134, Gly1133, Pro1131) and consists of two Hydrophobic interactions (Arg1029, Ala1132).



FIGURE 4.42: 2D depiction of docked complex Methyl nonyl ketone-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.43 shows the Folic acid-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -9.8. It has six Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Tyr1130, Thr1027, Ser1135, Arg1029, Ser1056, Lys1054) and consists of fifteen Hydrophobic interactions (Tyr1150, Gly1133, Gln1035, Val1036, Val1036, Val1052, Met51, Thr1053, His1051, Lys1054, Gly1133, Ala1132, His1051, Pro1131, Thr1034).



FIGURE 4.43: 2D depiction of docked complex Folic acid-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.44 shows the Caffeic acid-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -7.1. It has two Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Val1126, Thr1034) and consists of nine Hydrophobic interactions (Ser1135, Tyr1150, Gly1151, Ala1125, Leu1031, Leu1030, Arg1029, Gly1032, Ser1033).



FIGURE 4.44: 2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic acid-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.45 shows the p-coumaric acid-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.4. It has five Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ser1135, Gly1133, Thr1134, Pro1131, Thr1034) and consists of seven Hydrophobic interactions (Ala1132, His1051, Val1036, Met51, Arg1029, Thr1027, Lys1054).



FIGURE 4.45: 2D depiction of docked complex p-coumaric acid-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.46 shows the 5,7-dimethoxycoumarin-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.2. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Ser1135, Val1036, His1051, Asp1075) and no Hydrophobic interactions.



FIGURE 4.46: 2D depiction of docked complex 5,7-dimethoxy coumarin-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.47 shows the Chlorogenic acid-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -8.1. It has no Hydrogen bonds and consists of two Hydrophobic interactions (Thr1034, Ala1132).



FIGURE 4.47: 2D depiction of docked complex Chlorogenic acid-NS2B-NS3

Figure 4.48 shows the Protocatechuic acid-NS2B-NS3 docked complex, which has a binding energy of -6.7. It has four Hydrogen bonds (Amino acid: Tyr1150, Arg1029, Thr1034, Leu1128) and consists of five Hydrophobic interactions (Gly1032, Gly1151, Ser1033, Thr1027, Ser1135).



FIGURE 4.48: 2D depiction of docked complex Protocatechuic acid-NS2B-NS3

The information about the hydrogen bond and hydrophobic interactions between the chosen ligand and receptor protein NS2B-NS3 is displayed in Appendix as Table 5.2. The table explain all about the lingands.

## 4.10 Lead Compound Identification

The ligands' physiochemical and pharmacokinetic characteristics decide whether a molecule will become a drug or not. The Lipinski Rule of Five serves as the first filter for this identification, and pharmacokinetic properties serve as the second. Compounds that don't adhere to more than two rules are not regarded as drug-like. Folic acid and Chlorogenic acid, both, have 6 Hydrogen-bond donors but follow other properties, hence it is acceptable. Even though Carpaine and Tocopherol have Log P values of more than 5, they are however allowed to move on to the next phase. Therefore, there are no eliminations in the initial evaluation, and all compounds proceeded to the next phase. After this step, screening is based on good Interaction and Binding scores. Then, the succeeding step is pharmacokinetic screening. In this screening, Phenylalanine and Umbelliferon are omitted as both are hepatotoxic and may damage the liver, whereas due to the status as hERG II inhibitors, Tocopherol is eliminated. Cysteine, Homocysteine, p-coumaric acid, and Chlorogenic acid are eradicated because they have properties of chronic toxicity. Glutamic acid is knockout due to its poor Intestinal Absorption. After this screening, there are four compounds left i.e., Carpaine, Dimethoxyphenol, Caffeic acid, and Protocatechuic acid. Among all these compounds, Caffeic Acid shows the best binding energy as well as more hydrogen bonds with both targeted proteins (NS5 and NS2B-NS3).

# 4.11 Inhibitor Identification Against Targeted Proteins

Although there have been significant efforts made in the development of antivirals and vaccines for dengue, there is currently just supportive care available for patients [23], [73], [75], [84]. After this screening, there are four compounds left i.e., Carpaine, Dimethoxyphenol, Caffeic acid, and Protocatechuic acid. Among all these compounds, Caffeic Acid shows the best binding energy. Numerous antiviral medications and other host immune modulators are still undergoing clinical trials and won't be ready for usage in patients for a while. Several dengue vaccines are being developed and others have previously received approval for use, but neither of these has overwhelmingly demonstrated benefits for all age groups or immunity against all serotypes. Careful fluid management, along with regular monitoring and supportive care, is the cornerstone of treatment for dengue [20]. The inhibition of viral enzymes is the most successful strategy among those employed in the quest for and development of a dengue antiviral [73]. So for this research inhibitors of Selected Proteins have been chosen. SAM and HCQ are selected as inhibitors of NS5 and NS2B-NS3, respectively.

#### 4.11.1 Inhibitor of NS5: S-Adenosyl-L-methionine (SAM)

All living things contain the significant chemical S-Adenosyl-L-methionine (SAM). Although SAM is produced in the cytosol of every cell, the liver plays a crucial role in maintaining its homeostasis as the primary site of both its production and breakdown [110]. In Europe, SAM has been widely utilized as a prescriptiononly dietary supplement, and lactic acid bacteria with high SAM synthesizing capacity are anticipated to be employed as probiotics that increase SAM levels. SAM is regarded as a crucial metabolite in living organisms, just like ATP, and it is now more widely known that it plays important role in the treatment of many disorders, including liver disease, osteoarthritis, neurologic syndrome, depression, Alzheimer's dementia, and others [111].

#### 4.11.2 Inhibitor of NS2B-NS3:Hydroxychloroquine (HCQ)

Hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) is a medication that has been used for many years to treat skin conditions and autoimmune diseases. It is also becoming more popular as a treatment for cancer and pediatric inflammatory disorders [112]. Using a drug library that has been approved by the Food and Drug Administration, molecular docking, and molecular dynamics simulations, the drug HCQ which has already been approved for use in pregnancy has been discovered as a potential inhibitor of NS2B-NS3 protease. Enzyme kinetic experiments further demonstrated that hydroxychloroquine suppresses the activity of the NS2B-NS3 protease, providing further insight into its potential inhibitory effects. Furthermore, hydroxychloroquine greatly lowers placental cell infection with the Zika virus [113].

### 4.12 Inhibitor's ADMET Properties

Inhibitors are tested for drug score, drug similarity and toxicity. The ADMET properties of the choosen inhibitors are discovered by using the web tool pkCSM. In this the absorption, distribution, metabolism, excretion and toxicity was noticed.

#### 4.12.1 Absorption

Table 4.16 shows the absorptive properties of Selected Inhibitors. These properties revealed that both compounds are less soluble in water. The Intestinal Absorption of HCQ is more as compared to SAM. Skin permeability is low and both show positive results for P-glycoprotein substrate and negative for P-glycoprotein I and II inhibitors.

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
	Absorption Properties	S-adenosyl	Hydroxy
Sr.No.		methionine	chloroquine
		(SAM)	(HCQ)
1	Water Solubility	-2.892	-3.627
2	CaCO <sub>2</sub> Permeability	-0.844	1.543
3	Intestinal Absorption	17 126	00.017
	(Human)	17.400	90.211
4	Skin Permeability	-2.735	-2.849

TABLE 4.16: Absorption properties of SAM & HCQ

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
5	P-glycoprotein Substrate	Yes	Yes
6	P-glycoprotein I Inhibitor	No	No
7	P-glycoprotein II Inhibitor	No	No

TABLE 4.16: Absorption properties of SAM & HCQ

#### 4.12.2 Distribution

The distribution properties of selected inhibitors are given below in Table 4.17. The table illustrates that HCQ has a higher VDss value than SAM, indicating that it is dispersed more in tissue and less in plasma. The permeability to the brain barrier is indicated by BBB Permeability. Weak results are displayed by both inhibitors, indicating that their BBB permeability is poor.

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
		S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy
Sr.No.	<b>Distribution Properties</b>	methionine	chloroquine
		(SAM)	(HCQ)
1	VDss (Human)	0.027	1.076
2	Fraction Unbound	0.437	0.247
3	BBB Permeability	-1.02	0.074
4	CNS Permeability	-3.559	-2.511

TABLE 4.17: Distribution properties of SAM & HCQ

#### 4.12.3 Metabolism

Table 4.18 elaborates on the metabolic properties of inhibitory compounds.

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
	Matabaliana	S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-
Sr.No.		methionine	chloroquine
	Properties	(SAM)	(HCQ)
1	CYP2D6 Substrate	No	Yes
2	CYP3A4 Substrate	No	Yes
4	CYP2C19 Inhibitor	No	No
5	CYP2C9 Inhibitor	No	No
6	CYP2D6 Inhibitor	No	Yes
7	CYP3A4 Inhibitor	No	No

TABLE 4.18: Metabolic properties of SAM & HCQ

Table 4.18 illustrates that HCQ is metabolized by CYP2D6 and CYP3A4 while SAM cannot. CYP2D6 and CYP3A4 are the two main isoforms of cytochrome P450 (detoxification enzyme of the liver) that plays role in the excretion of exogenous compounds by oxidizing them. SAM cannot inhibit CYP2D6 as HCQ does.

#### 4.12.4 Excretion

Table 4.19 lists the anticipated values for the inhibitors' excretion. The hepatic and renal clearance of SAM and HCQ is represented by the total clearance reported as a log (CL tot) value. SAM and HCQ, both, predict a "No" for the presence of the renal OCT2 substrate, indicating that it does not affect how OCT2 functions in cells.

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
		S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-
Sr.No.	<b>Excretion Properties</b>	methionine	chloroquine
		(SAM)	(HCQ)
1	Total Clearance	0.446	1.152
2	Renal OCT2 Substrate	No	No

TABLE 4.19: Excretory properties of SAM & HCQ

#### 4.12.5 Toxicity

The table 4.20 shows that the maximum tolerated dose value of SAM and HCQ is 0.463 and -0.091 respectively. However, HCQ predicts itself as an hERG II inhibitor which means it inhibits potassium channels. Drug toxicity is predicted by the  $LD_{50}$ , and the LOAEL identifies the lowest dose at which side effects are likely to occur.

TABLE 4.20: Toxicity measurements of SAM & HCQ

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
	Torright	S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-
Sr.No.	Description	methionine	chloroquine
	Properties	(SAM)	(HCQ)
1	Max. Tolerated	0.463	_0 001
	Dose (Human)	0.405	-0.001
2	hERG I inhibitor	No	No
3	hERG II inhibitor	No	Yes
4	Oral Rat Acute Toxicity $(LD_{50})$	2.482	2.656
5	Oral Rat Chronic Toxicity (LOAEL)	2.019	1.407
6	Hepatotoxicity	Yes	Yes

		Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of
		NS5	NS2B-NS3
7	Skin Sensitization	No	No
8	T.Pyriformis toxicity	0.285	1.061
9	Minnow toxicity	3.178	1.325

TABLE 4.20: Toxicity measurements of SAM & HCQ

## 4.13 Inhibitor's Docking with Targeted Proteins

SAM and HCQ (as a ligand) with NS5 and NS2B-NS3 were docked using the web program CB Dock. Five conformational poses were produced through docking, and the best one was chosen. Table 4.21 displays the docking outcomes for the chosen protein-ligand complex.

		Docked with	Docked with	
		NS5	NS2B-NS3	
		S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-	
Sr.No.	Properties	methionine	chloroquine	
		(SAM)	(HCQ)	
1	Binding Score	-7.8	-7.6	
2	Cavity size	1660	5928	
9	H-Bond	Λ	0	
0	Donor	4	2	
4	H-Bond	11	Λ	
4	Acceptor	11	4	
5	Log P value	-3.2569	3.783	
6	Molecular Weight	398.4	335.9	
7	Rotatable	7	0	
(	Bonds	1	9	

TABLE 4.21: Docking Scores of Inhibitors with Targeted Protein Via CB Dock

# 4.14 Comparison of Lead Compound with Inhibitors

To determine the bioavailability, drug-likeness, efficacy, and safety of the Inhibitors and lead compound, their physicochemical and pharmacokinetic properties are compared.

#### 4.14.1 Comparison of Lipinski Rule of Five

All compounds pass the Lipinski rule criteria for drug-likeness. However, Caffeic acid indicates less molecular weight than both inhibitors. Table 4.22 shows that Caffeic acid has less no. of hydrogen bond donor and acceptor as compared to SAM and HCQ.

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lead
	NS5	NS2B-NS3	Compound
	S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-	Coffoio
Parameters	methionine	methionine chloroquine	
	(SAM)	(HCQ)	Acia
LogP	3 2560	3 783	1 105
value	-0.2009	0.100	1.100
Molecular			
weight	398.4	335.9	180.15
(g/mol)			
Rotatable	7	9	ე
Bonds	1		2
H-Bond Acceptor	11	4	3
H-Bond Donor	4	2	3

TABLE 4.22: Comparison of Lipinski Rule of Five of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds  $% \left( {{{\rm{Comparison}}} \right)$ 

#### 4.14.2 Comparison of ADMET Properties

When choosing chemicals as therapeutic candidates, pharmacokinetic qualities are a key consideration. To compare the ADMET characteristics, adsorption, distribution, metabolism, excretion, and toxicity are examined. Tables contain a list of these attributes.

#### 4.14.2.1 Absorption

According to absorptive comparison, it is determined that intestinal absorption of SAM is lower and HCQ is higher than the standard range i.e. 30-70%. None of them is the inhibitor of P-glycoprotein I and II, Caffeic acid, however, is not a P-glycoprotein substrate (Table 4.23).

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lead
	NS5	NS2B-NS3	Compound
Absorption Properties	S-adenosyl- methionine (SAM)	Hydroxy- chloroquine (HCQ)	Caffeic Acid
Water	2 802	3 697	0 33
Solubility	-2.092	-0.021	-2.00
$CaCO_2$	-0 844	1 543	0 634
Permeability	0.011	1.040	0.001
Intestinal	17 436	90.217	69 407
Absorption	11.100	50.211	05.407
Skin	-2 735	-2 849	-9 799
Permeability	2.100	2.040	2.122
P-glycoprotein Substrate	Yes	Yes	No
P-glycoprotein I Inhibitor	No	No	No
P-glycoprotein II Inhibitor	No	No	No

 TABLE 4.23: Comparison of Absorptive properties of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds

#### 4.14.2.2 Distribution

Table 4.24 shows the comparison of distribution properties. Inhibitors and lead compounds have reasonable value for VDss, as if it exceeded 2.8 L/kg then the drug is more distributed in the tissue rather than blood plasma. The fraction unbound value of Lead Compound is more than both inhibitors which shows Caffeic acid is more effective than reference inhibitors in case of unbounded friction present in plasma.

In contrast to SAM, which has poor BBB and CNS permeability values, caffeine acid and HCQ can pass across the brain barrier and into the CNS.

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lead
	NS5	NS2B-NS3	Compound
	S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-	
Distributive	methionine	chloroquine	Caffeic
Properties			Acid
	(SAM)	(HCQ)	
VDss (Human)	0.027	1.076	-1.098
Fraction Unbound (Human)	0.437	0.247	0.529
BBB Permeability	-1.02	0.074	-0.647
CNS Permeability	-3.559	-2.511	-2.608

TABLE 4.24: Comparison of Distribution properties of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds

#### 4.14.2.3 Metabolism

Table 4.25 elaborates on the compared metabolic properties of Inhibitors and lead.

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lead
	NS5	NS2B-NS3	Compound
Metabolism	S-adenosyl	Hydroxy-	Caffeic
Properties	methionine	chloroquine	Acid
-	(SAM)	$(\mathrm{HCQ})$	
CYP2D6	No	Ves	No
Substrate	110	105	NO
CYP3A4	No	Voc	No
Substrate	110	105	
CYP1A2	No	Vos	No
Inhibitor	110	105	
CYP2C19	No	No	No
Inhibitor	110	110	
CYP2C9	No	No	No
Inhibitor	110	110	
CYP2D6	No	Vac	No
Inhibitor	110	100	110
CYP3A4	No	No	No
Inhibitor	110	110	

 TABLE 4.25: Comparison of Metabolic properties of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds

The cytochrome P450 isoforms CYP2D6, CYP3A4, CYP1A2, CYP2C19, and CYP2C9 are used to predict the metabolic characteristics of substances. In contrast to caffeic acid, which is not projected to be a substrate of these isoforms, Hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) is listed in the table as a CYP3A4 isoform substrate.

#### 4.14.2.4 Excretion

Excretion attributes are represented in Table 4.26 as two models with projected values.

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lead
	NS5	NS2B-NS3	Compound
	S-adenosyl	Hydroxy-	
Excretion	methionine	chloroquine	Caffeic
Properties			Acid
	(SAM)	(HCQ)	
Total Clearance	0.446	1.152	0.508
Renal OCT2 Substrate	No	No	No

 TABLE 4.26: Comparison of Excretory Properties of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds

When compared to Caffeic Acid, HCQ has a higher projected value and SAM has a lower one, for drug clearance as measured by total clearance. All substances fall under the "No" category for the "Renal OCT2 Substrate Model," which means they do not disrupt the normal operation of the Organic Cation Transporter 2 (OCT2), which is involved in the renal clearance of medicines.

#### 4.14.2.5 Toxicity

Of all the pharmacokinetic (ADMET) qualities, toxicity is the most crucial one. Maximum tolerated dosage aids in determining the maximum suggested tolerated dose; if the value is equal to or less than 0.477 log mg/kg/day, it is regarded as low. Table 4.27 shows that Caffeic acid has a more tolerated value than both inhibitors (SAM and HCQ). The hERG I and II inhibitor models indicate whether or not the drugs under study will inhibit potassium channels. If "yes," the chemical might not be suitable for the medicine. Table 4.25 makes it clear that HCQ acts as an hERG II inhibitor. The lowest dose of a medicine that can cause harmful effects over a long period (chronic use) is determined by oral rat chronic toxicity (LOAEL). LOAEL value of SAM (inhibitor) and Caffeic acid (Lead Compound) is almost equal. However, HCQ predicts lower values as compared to other ones. The term "hepatotoxicity" refers to a liver injury that can be classified as either positive or negative. While both inhibitors are hepatotoxic substances, the predicted outcome for Caffeic Acid demonstrates that it is not. (Table 4.27).

	Inhibitor of NS5	Inhibitor of NS2B-NS3	Lead Co -mpound
Toxicity Properties	S-adenosyl- methionine (SAM)	Hydroxy- chloroquine (HCQ)	Caffeic Acid
Max. Tolerated Dose (Human)	0.463	-0.091	1.145
hERG I inhibitor	No	No	No
hERG II inhibitor	No	Yes	No
Oral Rat Acute Toxicity (LD <sub>50</sub> ) Oral Rat Chronic Toxicity (LOAEL)	2.482	2.656	2.383
	2.019	1.407	2.092
Hepatotoxicity	Yes	Yes	No
Skin Sensitization	No	No	No
T.Pyriformis toxicity	0.285	1.061	0.293
Minnow toxicity	3.178	1.325	2.246

TABLE 4.27: Comparison of Toxicity of Lead compound & Inhibitors

Both Inhibitors and the Lead Compound does not cause any allergic skin reaction. *T. pyriformis* toxicity value i.e., greater than - 0.5 is considered toxic according to which all compounds show toxicity against *T. pyriformis*. Toxicity levels for minnows are deemed toxic if they are less than 0.5mM.

## 4.14.3 Comparison of Physiochemical Properties and Docking Results

The essential characteristics of a compound are described by its physiochemical properties, which also serve as the main filters to separate compounds with desirable characteristics. According to Molecular Formula, SAM and HCQ consist of 49 and 50 atoms of Carbon, Hydrogen, Oxygen, Sulphur, Iodine, and Nitrogen, whereas, Caffeic Acid consists of 21 atoms of Carbon, Hydrogen, and Oxygen which shows its simplicity as a bio-compound. Compared to both inhibitors, Caffeic Acid has a lower molecular weight. Caffeic Acid can donate 3 Hydrogen bonds while inhibitors have values of 2 and 4. If there are more than 10, the oral bioavailability of rotatable bonds decreases.

In contrast to inhibitors, Caffeic Acid contains two rotatable bonds. SAM consists of 7 rotatable bonds whereas HCQ has 9 as shown in Table 4.28. When compared to the inhibitors, Caffeic Acid has a lower Binding score and shares the same cavity size as SAM; however, HCQ has a higher value for the cavity size.

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lond Compound	
	NS5 NS2B-NS3		Lead Compound	
	S-adenosyl-	Hydroxy-	Coffoia	
Properties	methionine chloroquine		A aid	
	(SAM)	(HCQ)	Aciu	
Binding Score	-7.8	-7.6	-6.5	
Cavity size	1660	5928	1660	
H-Bond Donor	4	2	3	
H-Bond Acceptor	11	4	3	

TABLE 4.28: Comparison of Physiochemical Properties and Docking Scores of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds

	Inhibitor of	Inhibitor of	Lead Compound	
	NS5	NS2B-NS3		
Log P value	-3.2569	3.783	1.195	
Molecular Formula	$\mathrm{C_{15}H_{22}N_6O_5S}$	$\mathrm{C}_{18}\mathrm{H}_{26}\mathrm{ClN}_{3}\mathrm{O}$	$C_9H_8O_4$	
Molecular Weight	398.4	335.9	180.1	
Rotatable Bonds	7	9	2	

 

 TABLE 4.28: Comparison of Physiochemical Properties and Docking Scores of Inhibitors and Lead Compounds

#### 4.14.4 Comparison of Docking Analysis

LigPlot is used to show the docking results, and the number of hydrogen bonds, hydrophobic contacts, steric interactions, and interacting amino acids is evaluated. NS5:with Lead Compound and Inhibitor (SAM)



FIGURE 4.49: 2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic Acid-NS5



FIGURE 4.50: 2D depiction of docked complex S-adenosylmethionine-NS5

Compounds	Binding Energy	No.of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydroph- obic Inter actions
			Amino Acids	Distance	
					Gln742
					Met343
			Arg729	3.29	Arg458
Caffeic acid	-6.5	4	Thr794 Arg729	3.13 3.09 3.26	Arg737
			Trp795		Thr793
					Lys460
					Tyr758
					Tyr758

TABLE 4.29: Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS5

Compounds	Binding Energy	No.of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydroph- obic Inter actions
			Amino Acids	Distance	
S-adenosyl- methionine (SAM)	-7.8	1	Arg792	2.94	Gln742 Lys460 Thr793

TABLE 4.29: Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS5

Table 4.29 displays the specifics of the hydrogen bond and hydrophobic interaction. The presence of oxygen atoms is significant since it is necessary for the establishment of an H-bond with the target protein. While S-adenosylmethionine only creates one hydrogen bond with Arg, Caffeic Acid forms four with Arg, Thr, and Trp residues. Additionally, S-adenosylmethionine has fewer hydrophobic interactions than Caffeic Acid.

NS2B-NS:with Lead Compound and Inhibitor (HCQ)



FIGURE 4.51: 2D depiction of docked complex Caffeic acid-NS2B-NS3



FIGURE 4.52: 2D depiction of docked complex Hydroxychloroquine-NS2B-NS3

Caffeic Acid forms four hydrogen bonds having residues of Arg, Thr, and Trp, whereas, Hydroxychloroquine contains 5 hydrogen bonds with residues Val, Ser, Arg, Asp and His. But Hydroxychloroquine has not proper interaction with protein. In addition, Table 4.30 demonstrates that Caffeic Acid has a greater number of hydrophobic interactions than Hydroxychloroquine (HCQ).

Compounds	Binding Energy	No.of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydrophobic Interactions
			Amino	Distance	
			Acids	Distance	
			A rg720	3 20	Gln742
	-6.5	4	Alg729	3.13 3.09 3.26	Met343
Caffeic acid			Thr794		Arg458
			Arg729		Ang 727
			Trp795		Arg/3/
			-		Thr793

TABLE 4.30: Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS2B-NS3

Compounds	Binding Energy	No.of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydrophobic Interactions
			Amino	Distance	
		Acids			
Undrown			Arg1029	2.89	
chloroquine	-7.6	5	Asp1075	2.66	Gln1035
			His1051	2.91	

TABLE 4.30: Docking analysis Comparison with Protein NS2B-NS3

# Chapter 5

# Conclusions and Recommendations

Undeniably, papaya is a traditional herbal remedy. Its therapeutic and nutritive benefits are well known all over the world. It has been utilized as a nutraceutical in ethnomedicine to treat or prevent a variety of illnesses, including cancer. According to several investigations, papaya leaves can boost platelet counts and prevents the damaging effects on platelets by dengue virus. The goal of this study was to identify active ingredients of *C. papaya* that could counteract thrombocytopenia. 20 ligands that may inhibit the target protein were chosen and docked against receptor proteins. PyMol and LigPlot were used to evaluate and visualize the docking data. Caffeic acid was chosen as the lead drug against both proteins, NS5 and NS2B-NS3, after a thorough investigation of their binding score, physicochemical qualities, and ADMET properties.

The possible inhibitors, based on earlier research on the targeted proteins, Sadenosylmethionine (SAM) for NS5 and hydroxychloroquine (HCQ) for NS2B-NS3, were compared with the virtual screening findings, physiochemical properties, and pharmacokinetics features of these compounds. These results imply that caffeic acid is regarded as a positive indicator for the creation of antiviral drugs to treat thrombocytopenia caused by dengue fever. Overall, it has been determined
that additional research into the phenolic molecule "caffeic acid" could lead to its potential development as a potent anti-dengue drug. To develop therapeutic uses for thrombocytopenia in vivo, more research is required to pinpoint the precise pharmacological activity of caffeic acid.

## Bibliography

- K. Musharaf, "Ethnobotanical Studies on Plant Resources of Sheikh Maltoon, District Mardan, Pakistan," *Medicinal Plant Research*, 2014, doi: 10.5376/mpr.2014.04.0005.
- [2] A. Maroyi, "Traditional use of medicinal plants in south-central Zimbabwe: review and perspectives," *Journal of Ethnobiology and Ethnomedicine*, vol. 9, no. 1, p. 31, 2013, doi: 10.1186/1746-4269-9-31..
- M. Leonti, "Antiquity of medicinal plant usage in two Macro-Mayan ethnic groups (México)," *Journal of Ethnopharmacology*, vol. 88, no. 2–3, pp. 119–124, Oct. 2003, doi: 10.1016/s0378-8741(03)00188-0.
- [4] Prance, G.T., "Ethnobotany and the future of conservation". Biologist (London, England), 47(2), pp.65-68, 2000, PMID: 11190230.
- [5] Asad, M,H,H,B, "Enlisting the scientifically unnoticed medicinal plants of Pakistan as a source of novel therapeutic agents showing anti-venom activity," *African Journal of Pharmacy and Pharmacology*, vol. 5, no. 20, Nov. 2011, doi: 10.5897/ajpp11.593.
- [6] S. Mussarat, N. M. AbdEl-Salam, A. Tariq, S. M. Wazir, R. Ullah, and M. Adnan, "Corrigendum to 'Use of Ethnomedicinal Plants by the People Living around Indus River," *Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine*, vol. 2016, pp. 1–8, 2016, doi: 10.1155/2016/3401263.
- [7] Khan AS, Hassan M, Ali S., "Secondary metabolite studies of some selected plants of District Gilgit, Gilgit-Baltistan". Int J Pharmacog Phytochem Res. ;6(3):467-471, 2014, Available online on www.ijppr.com.

- [8] Ahmad SS, Erum S, Khan MS, Nawaz M, Abdul W., "Exploring the medicinal plants wealth: a traditional medico-botanical knowledge of local communities in Changa Manga Forest, Pakistan," Middle-East J, 20(12):1772–1779, 2014, doi: 10.5829/idosi.mejsr.2014.20.12.21090.
- [9] Manzoor M, Durrani J, Ayesha A., "Uses of fruits, vegetables and herbs for the treatment of diabetes by the people of Quetta city". Sci Tech Dev, 32(1):24–27, 2013, ISSN: 0254-6418.
- [10] Johnsy G, Sargunam SD, Kaviyarasan V., "Indigenous knowledge of medicinal plants used for the treatment of skin diseases by the Kaani tribe of Kanyakumari District". Int Pharm Pharmaceut Sci, 4(1):309–313, 2012, ISSN- 0975-1491.
- [11] Ali H, Qaiser M. The ethnobotany of chitral valley, Pakistan with particular reference to medicinal plants. *Pak J Bot.*, 41(4):2009-2041, 2009. Available at: https://asset-pdf.scinapse.io/prod/1416751086/1416751086.pdf.
- [12] Bibi, T., Ahmad, M., Tareen, R. B., Tareen, N. M., Jabeen, R., Rehman, S. U., ... & Yaseen, G., "Ethnobotany of medicinal plants in district Mastung of Balochistan province-Pakistan," *Journal of Ethnopharmacology*, vol. 157, pp. 79–89, Nov. 2014, doi: 10.1016/j.jep.2014.08.042.
- [13] Shinwari KZ, "Medicinal plants research in Pakistan," J Med Plants Res., 4(3)-161-176, 2010. Available online at http://www.academicjournals. org/JMPR.
- [14] Ahmed, M. J., Malik, Z. H., Farooq, A., Khan, S., & Nasar, S. "Biological Spectrum and Ethnomedicinal Uses of Plants in Chellah District Muzaffarabad Azad Kashmir Pakistan," *Journal of Advanced Botany and Zoology*, Jul. 2014, doi: 10.15297/jabz.v1i4.09.
- [15] Arshad, A. S., & Bibi, G. "Ethnomedicinal uses of plant resources in Gilgit-Baltistan of Pakistan," *Journal of Medicinal Plants Research*, vol. 6, no. 29, Aug. 2012, doi: 10.5897/jmpr12.719.

- [16] Shaheen H, Nazir J, Firdous SS, Khalid A., "Cosmetic ethnobotany practiced by tribal women of Kashmir Himalayas. Avicenna J Phytomed., 4(4):239–250, 2014, PMID: 25068138.
- [17] T. J. O'Hare and D. J. Williams, "Papaya as a Medicinal Plant," Genetics and Genomics of Papaya, pp. 391–407, Jul. 2013, doi: 10.1007/978-1-4614-8087-721.
- [18] Rahman, A., "Health benefits, chemistry and mechanism of Carica papaya a crowning glory". Advances in Natural Science, 6(3), 26-37, 2013, doi: 10.3968/3732.
- [19] Mamboya, E. A. F. "PAPAIN, A PLANT ENZYME OF BIOLOGICAL IM-PORTANCE: A REVIEW," American Journal of Biochemistry and Biotechnology, vol. 8, no. 2, pp. 99–104, Feb. 2012, doi: 10.3844/ajbbsp.2012.99.104.
- [20] S. Rajapakse, N. L. de Silva, P. Weeratunga, C. Rodrigo, C. Sigera, and S. D. Fernando, "Carica papaya extract in dengue: a systematic review and meta-analysis," *BMC Complementary and Alternative Medicine*, vol. 19, no. 1, Oct. 2019, doi: 10.1186/s12906-019-2678-2.
- [21] World Health Organization, "Dengue and severe dengue," Who.int, Jan. 10, 2022. https://www.who.int/news-room/fact-sheets/detail/ dengue-and-severe-dengue
- [22] Araujo, R. V., Albertini, M. R., Costa-da-Silva, A. L., Suesdek, L., Franceschi, N. C. S., Bastos, N. M., ... & Allegro, V. L. A. C. "São Paulo urban heat islands have a higher incidence of dengue than other urban areas," *The Brazilian Journal of Infectious Diseases*, vol. 19, no. 2, pp. 146–155, Mar. 2015, doi: 10.1016/j.bjid.2014.10.004.
- [23] Siddique, O., Sundus, A., & Ibrahim, M. F., "Effects of papaya leaves on thrombocyte counts in dengue-a case report. JPMA. *The Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association*, 64(3), 364-366, 2014, PMID: 24864622.

- [24] Messina, J. P., Brady, O. J., Scott, T. W., Zou, C., Pigott, D. M., Duda, K. A., ... & Hay, S. I. "Global spread of dengue virus types: mapping the 70 year history," *Trends in Microbiology*, vol. 22, no. 3, pp. 138–146, Mar. 2014, doi: 10.1016/j.tim.2013.12.011.
- [25] Liu-Helmersson J, Quam M, Wilder-Smith A, Stenlund H, Ebi K, Massad E, Rocklöv J. "Climate Change and Aedes Vectors: 21st Century Projections for Dengue Transmission in Europe," *EBioMedicine*, vol. 7, pp. 267–277, May 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.ebiom.2016.03.046.
- [26] J. C. Semenza and K. L. Ebi, "Climate change impact on migration, travel, travel destinations and the tourism industry," *Journal of Travel Medicine*, vol. 26, no. 5, 2019, doi: 10.1093/jtm/taz026.
- [27] K. Lillepold, J. Rocklöv, J. Liu-Helmersson, M. Sewe, and J. C. Semenza, "More arboviral disease outbreaks in continental Europe due to the warming climate?," *Journal of Travel Medicine*, vol. 26, no. 5, 2019, doi: 10.1093/jtm/taz017.
- [28] C. J. Struchiner, J. Rocklöv, A. Wilder-Smith, and E. Massad, "Increasing Dengue Incidence in Singapore over the Past 40 Years: Population Growth, Climate and Mobility," *PLOS ONE*, vol. 10, no. 8, p. e0136286, Aug. 2015, doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0136286
- [29] Haider, Z., Ahmad, F. Z., Mahmood, A., Waseem, T., Shafiq, I., Raza, T., ... & Humayun, M. A., "Dengue fever in Pakistan: a paradigm shift; changing epidemiology and clinical patterns," *Perspectives in Public Health*, vol. 135, no. 6, pp. 294–298, Sep. 2015, doi: 10.1177/1757913915599019.
- [30] R. S. Solecki, "Shanidar IV, a Neanderthal Flower Burial in Northern Iraq," *Science*, vol. 190, no. 4217, pp. 880–881, Nov. 1975, doi: 10.1126/science.190.4217.880.
- [31] World Health Organization. Programme on Traditional Medicine, "WHO traditional medicine strategy 2002-2005," 2002, [Online]. Available: https: //apps.who.int/iris/handle/10665/67163

- [32] D. S. Fabricant and N. R. Farnsworth, "The value of plants used in traditional medicine for drug discovery.," *Environmental Health Perspectives*, vol. 109, no. suppl 1, pp. 69–75, Mar. 2001, doi: 10.1289/ehp.01109s169.
- [33] S. Wangkheirakpam, "Chapter 2 Traditional and Folk Medicine as a Target for Drug Discovery," Dimensions, 2018. https://app.dimensions.ai/ details/publication/pub.1101366837 (accessed Aug. 27, 2022).
- [34] J. El-Hilaly, M. Hmammouchi, and B. Lyoussi, "Ethnobotanical studies and economic evaluation of medicinal plants in Taounate province (Northern Morocco)," *Journal of Ethnopharmacology*, vol. 86, no. 2–3, pp. 149–158, Jun. 2003, doi: 10.1016/s0378-8741(03)00012-6.
- [35] Singh R.. Medicinal Plants: A Review. Journal of Plant Sciences. Special Issue: *Medicinal Plants*. Vol. 3, No. 1-1, 2015, pp. 50-55. doi: 10.11648/j.jps.s.2015030101.18
- [36] J. W. Ellingboe, "The Organic Chemistry of Drug Design and Drug Action. Second Edition By Richard B. Silverman. Elsevier Academic Press, London. 2004. xix + 617 pp. 19 × 27 cm. ISBN 0-12-643732-7. .," Journal of Medicinal Chemistry, vol. 47, no. 22, pp. 5591–5591, Oct. 2004, doi: 10.1021/jm0401513.
- Ahmad Z. Priorities of Medicinal Plants [37] Williams JT, Research in Pakistan. Medicinal and Aromatic Plants Program in Asia (MAPPA), New Delhi, 3. 1999.[Online], India, p: Available: https://idl-bnc-idrc.dspacedirect.org/bitstream/handle/10625/ 22721/110243.pdf?sequence=1
- [38] Krishna, K. L., Paridhavi, M., & Patel, J. A., "Review on nutritional, medicinal and pharmacological properties of Papaya (Carica papaya Linn.)". *Natural Product Radiance*, Vol. 7(4), 2008, pp.364-373, 2008, Available: http://nopr.niscpr.res.in/bitstream/123456789/5695/1/ NPR%207%284%29%20364-373.pdf.

- [39] Yogiraj, V., Goyal, P. K., Chauhan, C. S., Goyal, A., & Vyas, B., "Carica papaya Linn: an overview". *International journal of herbal medicine*, 2(5), 01-08, 2014, IJHM 2014; 2 (5): 01-08.
- [40] Ashish B. Wadekar, Minakshee G. Nimbalwar, Wrushali A. Panchale, Bhushan R. Gudalwar, Jagdish V. Manwar, and Ravindra L. Bakal, "Morphology, phytochemistry and pharmacological aspects of Carica papaya, an review," *GSC Biological and Pharmaceutical Sciences*, vol. 14, no. 03, pp. 234–248, Mar. 2021, doi: 10.30574/gscbps.2021.14.3.0073.
- [41] Yogiraj, V., Goyal, P. K., Chauhan, C. S., Goyal, A., & Vyas, B., "Carica papaya Linn: an overview". *International journal of herbal medicine*, 2(5), 01-08, 2014, IJHM 2014; 2 (5): 01-08.
- [42] K. Karunamoorthi, H.-M. Kim, K. Jegajeevanram, J. Xavier, and J. Vijayalakshmi, "Papaya: A gifted nutraceutical plant - a critical review of recent human health research," *TANG [HUMANITAS MEDICINE]*, vol. 4, no. 1, pp. 2.1–2.17, Feb. 2014, doi: 10.5667/tang.2013.0028.
- [43] Ikeyi, A. P., Ogbonna, A. O., & Eze, F. U., "Phytochemical analysis of paw-paw (*Carica papaya*) leaves". *International Journal of Life Sciences Biotechnology and Pharma Research*, 2(3), 347-351, 2013, Available: https: //www.cabdirect.org/cabdirect/abstract/20133370991.
- [44] M. Azarkan, "Fractionation and purification of the enzymes stored in the latex of Carica papaya," *Journal of Chromatography B, Apr.* 2003, doi: 10.1016/s0021-9673(02)01534-0.
- [45] K. Brocklehurst, E. Salih, R. McKee, and H. Smith, "Fresh non-fruit latex of Carica papaya contains papain, multiple forms of chymopapain A and papaya proteinase," *Biochemical Journal*, vol. 228, no. 2, pp. 525–527, Jun. 1985, doi: 10.1042/bj2280525.
- [46] T. DUBOIS, A. JACQUET, A. G. SCHNEK, and Y. LOOZE, "The Thiol Proteinases from the Latex of Carica papayaL. I. Fractionation, Purification

and Preliminary Characterization," *Biological Chemistry Hoppe-Seyler*, vol. 369, no. 2, pp. 733–740, Jan. 1988, doi: 10.1515/bchm3.1988.369.2.733.

- [47] M. Azarkan, A. Garcia-Pino, R. Dibiani, L. Wyns, R. Loris, and D. Baeyens-Volant, "Crystallization and preliminary X-ray analysis of a protease inhibitor from the latex of Carica papaya," Acta Crystallographica Section F Structural Biology and Crystallization Communications, vol. 62, no. 12, pp. 1239–1242, Nov. 2006, doi: 10.1107/s1744309106046367.
- [48] Naseem, S., Farheen, A., Muhammad, A., & Fauzia, R., "Dengue fever outbreak in Karachi, 2005-A clinical experience", *Infectious Diseases Journal* of Pakistan. 2005; 14 (4): 115-117,2005, ID: emr-104515.
- [49] World Health Organization: WHO, "Dengue and severe dengue," Who.int, Nov. 04, 2019. https://www.who.int/en/news-room/fact-sheets/ detail/dengue-and-severe-dengue.
- [50] Riaz, M., Mumtaz, K., Khan, M., Patel, J., Tariq, M., Hilal, H., Siddiqui, S., Shezad, F., "Outbreak of dengue fever in Karachi 2006: a clinical perspective", Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association, 59(6), 339-44. Available at: https://ecommons.aku.edu/pakistan\_fhs\_mc\_med\_intern\_med/16.
- [51] Habibullah, S., & Ashraf, J. "Perceptions and practices for the control of dengue fever in Karachi-a school based survey". *Pakistan Journal of Medical Research*, 52(4), 102, 2013, Available at: emro.who.int.
- [52] Koo, C., Nasir, A., Hapuarachchi, H. C., Lee, K. S., Hasan, Z., Ng, L. C., & Khan, E. ,"Evolution and heterogeneity of multiple serotypes of Dengue virus in Pakistan, 2006–2011," *Virology Journal*, vol. 10, no. 1, Sep. 2013, doi: 10.1186/1743-422x-10-275.
- [53] Ahmad, S., Aziz, M. A., Aftab, A., Ullah, Z., Ahmad, M. I., Mustan, A., "Epidemiology of dengue in Pakistan, present prevalence and guidelines for future control". *Int J Mosq Res*, 4(6), 25-32, 2017, IJMR 2017; 4(6): 25-32.

- [54] F. Jahan, "Dengue Fever (DF) in Pakistan," Asia Pacific Family Medicine, vol. 10, no. 1, p. 1, 2011, doi: 10.1186/1447-056x-10-1.
- [55] World Health Organization, I. Tropical, World Health Organization. Department Of Control Of Neglected Tropical Diseases, and World Health Organization. Epidemic And Pandemic Alert And Response, Dengue: guidelines for diagnosis, treatment, prevention and control. Geneva: World Health Organization, 2009.
- [56] Kuhn, R. J., Zhang, W., Rossmann, M. G., Pletnev, S. V., Corver, J., Lenches, E., ... & Strauss, J. H., "Structure of dengue virus: implications for flavivirus organization, maturation, and fusion," *Acta Crystallographica Section A Foundations of Crystallography*, vol. 58, no. s1, pp. c6–c6, Aug. 2002, doi: 10.1107/s0108767302085343.
- [57] S. R. S. Hadinegoro, "The revised WHO dengue case classification: does the system need to be modified?," *Paediatrics and International Child Health*, vol. 32, no. sup1, pp. 33–38, May 2012, doi: 10.1179/2046904712z.0000000052.
- [58] R. O. S. Soares and A. Caliri, "Stereochemical features of the envelope protein Domain III of dengue virus reveals putative antigenic site in the five-fold symmetry axis," *Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA) -Proteins and Proteomics*, vol. 1834, no. 1, pp. 221–230, Jan. 2013, doi: 10.1016/j.bbapap.2012.09.007.
- [59] R. Dias and W. de Azevedo Jr., "Molecular Docking Algorithms," Current Drug Targets, vol. 9, no. 12, pp. 1040–1047, Dec. 2008, doi: 10.2174/138945008786949432.
- [60] E. Yuriev and P. A. Ramsland, "Latest developments in molecular docking: 2010-2011 in review," *Journal of Molecular Recognition*, vol. 26, no. 5, pp. 215–239, Mar. 2013, doi: 10.1002/jmr.2266.
- [61] Rani, G. J., Vinoth, M., & Anitha, P., "Molecular docking studies on oxidosqualene cyclase with 4-piperidinopyridine and 4-piperidinopyrimidine as

its inhibitors". Journal of Bioinformatics and Sequence Analysis, 3(3), 31-36, 2011, Available at: http://www.academicjournals.org/JBSA.

- [62] B. K. Shoichet, S. L. McGovern, B. Wei, and J. J. Irwin, "Lead discovery using molecular docking," *Current Opinion in Chemical Biology*, vol. 6, no. 4, pp. 439–446, Aug. 2002, doi: 10.1016/s1367-5931(02)00339-3.
- [63] D. Guha-Sapir and B. Schimmer, "Dengue fever: new paradigms for a changing epidemiology," *Emerging Themes in Epidemiology*, vol. 2, no. 1, p. 1, 2005, doi: 10.1186/1742-7622-2-1.
- [64] A. K. Bera, R. J. Kuhn, and J. L. Smith, "Functional Characterization of cisandtransActivity of the Flavivirus NS2B-NS3 Protease," JournalofBiologicalChemistry, vol. 282, no. 17, pp. 12883–12892, Mar. 2007, doi: 10.1074/jbc.m611318200.
- [65] R. Yusof, S. Clum, M. Wetzel, H. M. Krishna. Murthy, and R. Padmanabhan, "Purified NS2B/NS3 Serine Protease of Dengue Virus Type 2 Exhibits Cofactor NS2B Dependence for Cleavage of Substrates with Dibasic Amino Acids in Vitro," *Journal of Biological Chemistry*, vol. 275, no. 14, pp. 9963–9969, Apr. 2000, doi: 10.1074/jbc.275.14.9963.
- [66] C. G. Noble, C. C. Seh, A. T. Chao, and P. Y. Shi, "Ligand-Bound Structures of the Dengue Virus Protease Reveal the Active Conformation," *Journal of Virology*, vol. 86, no. 1, pp. 438–446, Oct. 2011, doi: 10.1128/jvi.06225-11.
- [67] B. Falgout, M. Pethel, Y. M. Zhang, and C. J. Lai, "Both nonstructural proteins NS2B and NS3 are required for the proteolytic processing of dengue virus nonstructural proteins.," *Journal of Virology*, vol. 65, no. 5, pp. 2467–2475, 1991, doi: 10.1128/jvi.65.5.2467-2475.1991.
- [68] Chambers, T. J., Weir, R. C., Grakoui, A., McCourt, D. W., Bazan, J. F., Fletterick, R. J., & Rice, C. M., "Evidence that the N-terminal domain of nonstructural protein NS3 from yellow fever virus is a serine protease responsible for site-specific cleavages in the viral polyprotein". *Proceedings of*

the National Academy of Sciences, 87(22), 8898-8902, 1990, doi: 10.1073/p-nas.87.22.8898.

- [69] H. A. Rothan, H. C. Han, T. S. Ramasamy, S. Othman, N. A. Rahman, and R. Yusof, "Inhibition of dengue NS2B-NS3 protease and viral replication in Vero cells by recombinant retrocyclin-1," *BMC Infectious Diseases*, vol. 12, no. 1, Nov. 2012, doi: 10.1186/1471-2334-12-314.
- [70] Loehr, K., Knox, J. E., Phong, W. Y., Ma, N. L., Yin, Z., Sampath, A., ... & Lim, S. P., "Yellow fever virus NS3 protease: peptide-inhibition studies," *Journal of General Virology*, vol. 88, no. 8, pp. 2223–2227, Aug. 2007, doi: 10.1099/vir.0.82735-0.
- [71] S. Clum, K. E. Ebner, and R. Padmanabhan, "Cotranslational Membrane Insertion of the Serine Proteinase Precursor NS2B-NS3(Pro) of Dengue Virus Type 2 Is Required for Efficient in Vitro Processing and Is Mediated through the Hydrophobic Regions of NS2B," *Journal of Biological Chemistry*, vol. 272, no. 49, pp. 30715–30723, Dec. 1997, doi: 10.1074/jbc.272.49.30715.
- [72] Randall, G., Panis, M., Cooper, J. D., Tellinghuisen, T. L., Sukhodolets, K. E., Pfeffer, S., ... & Rice, C. M., "Cellular DNA repair cofactors affecting hepatitis B virus infection and replication," World Journal of Gastroenterology, vol. 14, no. 32, p. 5059, 2008, doi: 10.3748/wjg.14.5059.
- [73] A. S. de Oliveira, M. L. da Silva, A. F. C. S. Oliveira, C. C. da Silva, R. R. Teixeira, and S. O. De Paula, "NS3 and NS5 Proteins: Important Targets for Anti-Dengue Drug Design," *Journal of the Brazilian Chemical Society*, 2014, doi: 10.5935/0103-5053.20140057.
- [74] M. Kapoor, L. Zhang, M. Ramachandra, J. Kusukawa, K. E. Ebner, and R. Padmanabhan, "Association between NS3 and NS5 proteins of dengue virus type 2 in the putative RNA replicase is linked to differential phosphorylation of NS5," *The Journal of Biological Chemistry*, vol. 270, no. 32, pp. 19100–19106, Aug. 1995, doi: 10.1074/jbc.270.32.19100.

- [75] Md. M. R. Sarker, F. Khan, and I. N. Mohamed, "Dengue Fever: Therapeutic Potential of Carica papaya L. Leaves," *Frontiers in Pharmacology*, vol. 12, Apr. 2021, doi: 10.3389/fphar.2021.610912.
- [76] Sathyapalan, D. T., Padmanabhan, A., Moni, M., P-Prabhu, B., Prasanna, P., Balachandran, S., ... & Menon, V., "Efficacy & safety of Carica papaya leaf extract (CPLE) in severe thrombocytopenia (greater than 30,000/microliter) in adult dengue – Results of a pilot study," PLOS ONE, vol. 15, no. 2, p. e0228699, Feb. 2020, doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0228699.
- [77] M. Kaur, N. C. Talniya, S. Sahrawat, A. Kumar, and E. E. Stashenko, "Ethnomedicinal Uses, Phytochemistry and Pharmacology of Carica papaya Plant: A Compendious Review," *Mini-Reviews in Organic Chemistry*, vol. 16, no. 5, pp. 463–480, Jun. 2019, doi: 10.2174/1570193x15666180816110733.
- [78] A. Canini, D. Alesiani, G. D'Arcangelo, and P. Tagliatesta, "Gas chromatography-mass spectrometry analysis of phenolic compounds from Carica papaya L. leaf," *Journal of Food Composition and Analysis*, vol. 20, no. 7, pp. 584–590, Nov. 2007, doi: 10.1016/j.jfca.2007.03.009.
- [79] Harris, E., Videa, E., Sandoval, E., Cuadra, R., Rocha, J., Idiaquez, W., ... & Balmaseda, A., "Clinical, epidemiologic, and virologic features of dengue in the 1998 epidemic in Nicaragua.," *The American Journal of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene*, vol. 63, no. 1, pp. 5–11, Jul. 2000, doi: 10.4269/ajtmh.2000.63.5.
- [80] Ernst, T., McCarthy, S., Chidlow, G., Luang-Suarkia, D., Holmes, E. C., Smith, D. W., & Imrie, A. "Emergence of a New Lineage of Dengue Virus Type 2 Identified in Travelers Entering Western Australia from Indonesia, 2010-2012," *PLOS Neglected Tropical Diseases*, vol. 9, no. 1, p. e0003442, Jan. 2015, doi: 10.1371/journal.pntd.0003442.
- [81] A. E. Matusan, M. J. Pryor, A. D. Davidson, and P. J. Wright, "Mutagenesis of the Dengue Virus Type 2 NS3 Protein within and outside Helicase Motifs:

Effects on Enzyme Activity and Virus Replication," *Journal of Virology*, vol. 75, no. 20, pp. 9633–9643, Oct. 2001, doi: 10.1128/jvi.75.20.9633-9643.2001.

- [82] L. G. Gebhard, S. B. Kaufman, and A. V. Gamarnik, "Novel ATP-Independent RNA Annealing Activity of the Dengue Virus NS3 Helicase," *PLoS ONE*, vol. 7, no. 4, p. e36244, Apr. 2012, doi: 10.1371/journal.pone.0036244.
- [83] Zhao, Y., Soh, T. S., Zheng, J., Chan, K. W. K., Phoo, W. W., Lee, C. C., ... & Luo, D., "A Crystal Structure of the Dengue Virus NS5 Protein Reveals a Novel Inter-domain Interface Essential for Protein Flexibility and Virus Replication," *PLOS Pathogens*, vol. 11, no. 3, p. e1004682, Mar. 2015, doi: 10.1371/journal.ppat.1004682.
- [84] S. M. Tomlinson and S. J. Watowich, "Anthracene-based inhibitors of dengue virus NS2B–NS3 protease," *Antiviral Research*, vol. 89, no. 2, pp. 127–135, Feb. 2011, doi: 10.1016/j.antiviral.2010.12.006.
- [85] K. Anand, "Coronavirus Main Proteinase (3CLpro) Structure: Basis for Design of Anti-SARS Drugs," *Science*, vol. 300, no. 5626, pp. 1763–1767, Jun. 2003, doi: 10.1126/science.1085658.
- [86] Hunter, S., Jones, P., Mitchell, A., Apweiler, R., Attwood, T. K., Bateman, A., ... & Yong, S. Y. "InterPro in 2011: new developments in the family and domain prediction database," *Nucleic Acids Research*, vol. 40, no. D1, pp. D306–D312, Nov. 2011, doi: 10.1093/nar/gkr948.
- [87] S. I. Mostafa, "Mixed ligand complexes with 2-piperidine-carboxylic acid as primary ligand and ethylene diamine, 2,2-bipyridyl, 1,10-phenanthroline and 2(2-pyridyl)quinoxaline as secondary ligands: preparation, characterization and biological activity," *Transition Metal Chemistry*, vol. 32, no. 6, pp. 769–775, Jul. 2007, doi: 10.1007/s11243-007-0247-x.
- [88] M. Roomi, M. Mahmood, and Y. Khan, "Identifying Therapeutic Compounds Targeting RNA-Dependent-RNA-Polymerase of Sars-Cov-2," Jun. 2020, doi: 10.26434/chemrxiv.12477761.v4.

- [89] S. Farabi, N. Saha, M. Hasanuzzaman, N. Khan, and M. Haque, "Prediction of SARS-CoV-2 main protease inhibitors in medicinal plant-derived compounds by molecular docking approach," *Journal of Advanced Biotechnology* and Experimental Therapeutics, vol. 3, no. 4, p. 79, 2020, doi: 10.5455/jabet.2020.d159.
- [90] D. Heider and A. Barnekow, "DNA watermarks: A proof of concept," BMC Molecular Biology, vol. 9, no. 1, p. 40, 2008, doi: 10.1186/1471-2199-9-40.
- [91] S. Yuan, H. C. S. Chan, and Z. Hu, "Using PyMOL as a platform for computational drug design," WIREs Computational Molecular Science, vol. 7, no. 2, Jan. 2017, doi: 10.1002/wcms.1298.
- [92] Akhila, Vijayalakshmi, and Ijpsr, "PHYTOCHEMICAL STUDIES ON CARICA PAPAYA LEAF JUICE," International Journal of Pharmaceutical Sciences and Research, vol. 6, no. 2, pp. 880–883, 2015, doi: 10.13040/IJPSR.0975-8232.6(2).880-83.
- [93] Yogiraj, V., Goyal, P. K., Chauhan, C. S., Goyal, A., & Vyas, B., "Carica papaya Linn: an overview". *International journal of herbal medicine*, 2(5), 01-08, 2014, IJHM 2014; 2 (5): 01-08.
- [94] A. Monaghan, "Global warming to expose more people to Zika-spreading mosquito Aedes aegypti," The Conversation. https://theconversation.com/global-warming-to-expose-more-people\ -to-zika-spreading-mosquito-aedes-aegypti-58908(accessedAug. 28,2022).
- [95] El Sahili, A., Soh, T. S., Schiltz, J., Gharbi-Ayachi, A., Seh, C. C., Shi, P. Y., ... & Lescar, J., "NS5 from Dengue Virus Serotype 2 Can Adopt a Conformation Analogous to That of Its Zika Virus and Japanese Encephalitis Virus Homologues," *Journal of Virology*, vol. 94, no. 1, Oct. 2019, doi: 10.1128/jvi.01294-19.
- [96] Li, Y., Zhang, Z., Phoo, W. W., Loh, Y. R., Li, R., Yang, H. Y., ... & Kang, C., "Structural Insights into the Inhibition of Zika Virus NS2B-NS3 Protease

by a Small-Molecule Inhibitor," *Structure*, vol. 26, no. 4, pp. 555-564.e3, Apr. 2018, doi: 10.1016/j.str.2018.02.005.

- [97] Y. Li, Q. Li, Y. L. Wong, L. S. Y. Liew, and C. Kang, "Membrane topology of NS2B of dengue virus revealed by NMR spectroscopy," *Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA) – Biomembranes*, vol. 1848, no. 10, pp. 2244–2252, Oct. 2015, doi: 10.1016/j.bbamem.2015.06.010.
- [98] Garg, V. K., Avashthi, H., Tiwari, A., Jain, P. A., Ramkete, P. W., Kayastha, A. M., & Singh, V. K., "MFPPI – Multi FASTA ProtParam Interface," *Bioinformation*, vol. 12, no. 2, pp. 74–77, Apr. 2016, doi: 10.6026/97320630012074.
- [99] Y. Liu, M. Grimm, W. Dai, M. Hou, Z.-X. Xiao, and Y. Cao, "CB-Dock: a web server for cavity detection-guided protein-ligand blind docking," *Acta Pharmacologica Sinica*, vol. 41, no. 1, pp. 138–144, Jul. 2019, doi: 10.1038/s41401-019-0228-6.
- [100] A. C. Wallace, R. A. Laskowski, and J. M. Thornton, "LIGPLOT: a program to generate schematic diagrams of protein-ligand interactions," "Protein Engineering, Design and Selection," vol. 8, no. 2, pp. 127–134, 1995, doi: 10.1093/protein/8.2.127.
- [101] R. A. Laskowski and M. B. Swindells, "LigPlot+: Multiple Ligand-Protein Interaction Diagrams for Drug Discovery," *Journal of Chemical Information and Modeling*, vol. 51, no. 10, pp. 2778–2786, Oct. 2011, doi: 10.1021/ci200227u.
- [102] Cheng, F., Li, W., Zhou, Y., Shen, J., Wu, Z., Liu, G., & Tang, Y., "Correction to 'admetSAR: A Comprehensive Source and Free Tool for Assessment of Chemical ADMET Properties," *Journal of Chemical Information and Modeling*, vol. 59, no. 11, pp. 4959–4959, Oct. 2019, doi: 10.1021/acs.jcim.9b00969.
- [103] Kramer, C., Ting, A., Zheng, H., Hert, J., Schindler, T., Stahl, M., & Griffen,
   E. J., "Learning Medicinal Chemistry Absorption, Distribution, Metabolism,

Excretion, and Toxicity (ADMET) Rules from Cross-Company Matched
Molecular Pairs Analysis (MMPA)," Journal of Medicinal Chemistry, vol.
61, no. 8, pp. 3277–3292, Sep. 2017, doi: 10.1021/acs.jmedchem.7b00935.

- [104] D. Lagorce, D. Douguet, M. A. Miteva, and B. O. Villoutreix, "Computational analysis of calculated physicochemical and ADMET properties of protein-protein interaction inhibitors," *Scientific Reports*, vol. 7, no. 1, Apr. 2017, doi: 10.1038/srep46277.
- [105] B. Chandrasekaran, S. N. Abed, O. Al-Attraqchi, K. Kuche, and R. K. Tekade, "Computer-Aided Prediction of Pharmacokinetic (ADMET) Properties," *Dosage Form Design Parameters*, vol. 2, pp. 731–755, 2018, doi: 10.1016/b978-0-12-814421-3.00021-x.
- [106] J. Lin, D. Sahakian, S. de Morais, J. Xu, R. Polzer, and S. Winter, "The Role of Absorption, Distribution, Metabolism, Excretion and Toxicity in Drug Discovery," *Current Topics in Medicinal Chemistry*, vol. 3, no. 10, pp. 1125–1154, May 2003, doi: 10.2174/1568026033452096.
- [107] D. E. V. Pires, L. M. Kaminskas, and D. B. Ascher, "Prediction and Optimization of Pharmacokinetic and Toxicity Properties of the Ligand," *Methods in Molecular Biology*, pp. 271–284, 2018, doi: 10.1007/978-1-4939-7756-714.
- [108] U. Norinder and C. A. S. Bergstroem, "Prediction of ADMET Properties.," *ChemInform*, vol. 37, no. 46, Nov. 2006, doi: 10.1002/chin.200646278.
- [109] Morris, G. M., Huey, R., Lindstrom, W., Sanner, M. F., Belew, R. K., Goodsell, D. S., & Olson, A. J., "AutoDock4 and AutoDockTools4: Automated docking with selective receptor flexibility," *Journal of Computational Chemistry*, vol. 30, no. 16, pp. 2785–2791, Dec. 2009, doi: 10.1002/jcc.21256.
- [110] J. M. Mato, L. Alvarez, P. Ortiz, and M. A. Pajares, "S-adenosylmethionine synthesis: molecular mechanisms and clinical implications," *Pharmacology & Therapeutics*, vol. 73, no. 3, pp. 265–280, 1997, doi: 10.1016/s0163-7258(96)00197-0.

- [111] J. Chu, J. Qian, Y. Zhuang, S. Zhang, and Y. Li, "Progress in the research of S-adenosyl-1-methionine production," *Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology*, vol. 97, no. 1, pp. 41–49, Nov. 2012, doi: 10.1007/s00253-012-4536-8.
- [112] I. H. Yusuf, S. Sharma, R. Luqmani, and S. M. Downes, "Hydroxychloroquine retinopathy," *Eye*, vol. 31, no. 6, pp. 828–845, Mar. 2017, doi: 10.1038/eye.2016.298.
- [113] Kumar, A., Liang, B., Aarthy, M., Singh, S. K., Garg, N., Mysorekar, I. U., & Giri, R., "Hydroxychloroquine Inhibits Zika Virus NS2B-NS3 Protease," ACS Omega, vol. 3, no. 12, pp. 18132–18141, Dec. 2018, doi: 10.1021/acsomega.8b01002.
- [114] Li, M., Ye, G., Si, Y., Shen, Z., Liu, Z., Shi, Y., & Peng, G., "Structure of the multiple functional domains from coronavirus nonstructural protein 3," *Emerging Microbes Infections*, vol. 10, no. 1, pp. 66–80, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.1080/22221751.2020.1865840.

## An Appendix

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
					Ser796
					Ile797
					Cys709
Carpaine	-9.6	0	-	-	Glu459
					Lys461
					Arg472
					Asp539
					Asn610

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
					Thr794
Kaempferol	-8.1	0	-	-	Trp795
					Arg737
Ascorbic acid	-5.9	1	Thr794	2.75	Trp795
					Arg472
Tocopherol	-6.5	0	-	-	Asp539
					Ala473
					Arg737
Dicoumarol	-8.7	0	-	-	Thr793
					Thr794
					Thr794
			Thr 793	3.02	
~ ·					Arg792
Cysteine	-4.0	3	Tyr758	3.05	C1 (50
			I	2.00	Glu459
			Lys460	3.08	$T_{\rm em} 705$
					1rp/95

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
			Tyr758	3.21	Lys460
Homocysteine	-4.2	2			
			Thr 793	2.91	Arg792
			Thr 793	3.08	Gln742
Dimethoxy	-5.3	4	Arg737	2.87	Arg792
phenol			Lys460	3.27	Thr794
			Tyr758	2.83	Glu459
					Arg458
					Lys460
					Glu459
					Gln742
Coumarin	-6.6	0	-	-	Thr794
					Thr793
					Trp795
					Arg792

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
			Lys460	3.07	Gln742
Glutamic	-5.2	4	Arg737	3.16	Arg792
acid		Thr793	3.05	Trp795	
			Tyr758	2.87	Glu459
					Arg458
					Gln742
					Thr794
Phenyl-	-6.5	2	Arg737	3.22	Arg792
arannne			Lys460	3.12	Trp795
					Thr793
					Trp795

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
					Trp795
Caffooul			Arg737	3.07	
alcohol	-6.1	2			Glu459
alconor			Lys460	2.83	
					Lys461
					Met343
					Gln742
			Arg737	2.81	Thr794
Umbelli- feron	-6.5	3	Lys460	2.91	Trp795
			Arg458	3.21	Thr793
					Tyr758
					Glu459
					Trp478
Methyl			Arg 579	2.99	
nonyl	-5.0	2			Thr449
ketone			Glu287	3.32	
					Lys283

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
			Ile797	3.30	His798
					Cys709
			Ser796	2.94	Gly662
					Ser710
Folic acid	-9.0	5	Gln603	3.12	Ile474
					Trp 475
			Thr606	2.94	Asp539
					Tyr607
			Asp663	3.00	Ser661
					Gln742
			Arg729	3.29	Met343
				0.10	Arg458
Coffeia agid	6 5	4	1'hr794	3.13	Arg737
Caneic acid	-0.5	4	Arg729	3.09	Thr793
			Trp795	3.26	Lys460
					Tyr758

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acids	ance	
					Met343
			Arg792	3.13	Glu742
p-coumaric acid	-6.3	3	Lys460	3.30	Arg458 Clu459
			1.797	2 01	Thr793
			Arg/3/	3.21	Trp795
					Thr794
5,7-dimeth-			Tyr758	2.94	Arg737
-oxy coumarin	-6.1	2	Thr793	3.22	Lys460
Chlorogenic acid	-8.4	0	_	_	Thr 794
emologenie acid	0.1	0			Trp795
					Asp539
			Trp475	3.07	Ala473
					Gln603
Protocatechuic acid	-6.3	3	Thr606	2.97	Gly600
			1 11 0 0 0		Gly602
			Ser601	3.00	
					Arg599

TABLE 5.1: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen and Hydrophobic Interactions with NS5  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acid	ance	
					Arg1059
					Arg1064
					Met51
Carpaine	-8.5	1	Ser48	2.70	Ser1056
Carpanie	0.0	T	50110	2.10	Lys1073
					Val1072
					Val49
				Asp50	
			Gly1133	3.30	
Kaempferol	-8.4	2			-
			Ser1135	3.00	
					Ser1135
Ascorbic	-6 6	0	_	_	Tyr1150
acid	0.0	0		-	Arg1029
					Thr1027
					Leu1085
					Val1146
Tocopherol	-7.8	0	-	-	Leu1076
					Trp1083
					Gly1148
					Pro1131
Dicoumarol	-8.9	1	Arg1029	3.17	Tyr1130
					Gly1151

TABLE 5.2: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino Acid	Dist- ance	
Cysteine Homo- cysteine	-4.0 -4.5	4	Ser1135 Thr1134 Gly1133 Thr1034 Tyr1130	3.01 3.08 3.01 3.04 3.00	Val1036 Ala1132 Pro1131 Arg1029 Tyr1150 Thr1034 Ser1135
Dimethoxy phenol	-5.7	2	Tyr1130 Tyr1150	3.27 2.78	Asp1129 Ala1132 Pro1131 Thr1034 Gly1133 Ser1135 Gly1151
Coumarin	-6.1	2	Thr1034 Thr1027	2.80 3.19	Arg1029 Met51 Lys1054 His1051 Val1036 Ala1132 Gly1133 Arg1029

TABLE 5.2: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acid	ance	
					Asp1129
					Gly1151
			C1125	2.00	Tyr1150
			Thr $1134$	3.18	Pro1131
Glutamic acid	-5.7	4	Glv1133	3.10	Tyr1130
			Thr $1034$	3.10	Ala1132
			11111004	0.01	Gly1032
					Arg1029
					Ser1033
					Gln1035
Phonyl					Thr1034
alanino	-5.5	1	Val1036	3.14	Val1036
aramme					Gly1133
					His1051
Caffeoyl	-6.6	1	Vəl1196	3.11	Tyr1150
alcohol	-0.0	1	va11120	3.04	Gly1151
					Val1155
					Gly1153
Umbolliforon	-6.5	2	Ala1087	2.79	Leu1076
Ombenneron	-0.0	<u>ل</u>	Val1146	2.85	Asn1152
					Gly1148
					Trp1083

TABLE 5.2: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino Acid	Dist- ance	
Methyl nonyl ketone	-5.5	4	Ser1135 Thr1134 Gly1133 Pro1131	3.03 2.97 2.88 3.05	Arg1029 Ala1132 Tyr1150
Folic acid	-9.8	6	Tyr1130 Thr1027 Ser1135 Arg1029 Ser1056 Lys1054	3.07 2.64 3.18 3.03 3.00 3.17	Gly1133 Gln1035 Val1036 Val1036 Val1052 Met51 Thr1053 His1051 Lys1054 Gly1133
					His1051
					Pro1131 Thr1034

TABLE 5.2: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acid	ance	
					Ala1125
					Leu1031
					Leu1030
Caffeic acid	-7.1	2	Val1126	2.94	
		_	Thr1034	2.86	Arg1029
					Gly1032
					Ser1033
					Ala1132
			Ser1135	3.08	His1051
			Gly1133	3.03	Val1036
p-coumaric acid	-6.4	5	Thr1134	3.02	Met51
			Pro1131	2.92	Arg1029
			Thr1034	2.89	Thr1027
					Lys1054

TABLE 5.2: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3  $\,$ 

\_\_\_\_

Compounds	Binding Energy	No. of Hydrogen Bonds	Hydrogen Bonding		Hydro- phobic Interactions
			Amino	Dist-	
			Acid	ance	
			Ser1135	3.05	
5,7-dimethoxy coumarin	-6.2	4	Val1036	3.10	-
			His1051	2.71	
			Asp1075	2.94	Thr1024
Chlorogenic acid	-8.1	0	-	-	11111054
			Tyr1150	3.07	Ala1132
Protocatechuic acid	-6.7	4	J		Gly1032
			Arg1029	2.95	Gly1151
					Ser1033
			Thr1034	3.01	Thr1027
					Ser1135
			Leu1128	2.93	

TABLE 5.2: Active Ligand showing Hydrogen & Hydrophobic Interactions with NS2B-NS3  $\,$